

UTM Operator Manual

Version: 4.0



Table of Contents

1.0 Introduction	6
1.1 Overview	6
1.2 Purpose of the Manual	7
1.3 Prerequisites	7
2.0 UTM Concepts, Role Based Access & Workflows	8
2.1 Airspace	9
2.2 Lateral Position	10
Latitude	11
Longitude	11
2.3 Vertical Position	14
2.4 Time	18
2.5 Operation Type	20
Visual Line of Sight (VLOS) Operations	20
Extended Visual Line of Sight (EVLOS) Operations	21
Beyond Visual Line of Sight (BVLOS) Operations	21
2.6 Role Based Access (RBA) in UTM	22
Operator User Roles	22
User Profiles	23
2.7 UTM Operator Workflows	24
2.8 UTM Concepts	25
UTM Rules	25
Flight Requests	26
Flights	27
3.0 UTM Graphical User Interface	29
4.0 Operator Role - Mobile	30
4.1 Set Up Account	31
4.2 Onboarding	31
4.3 Registration	34
4.3.1 Recreational	35
4.3.2 Commercial Organisation	40
4.4 Dashboard	47
4.4.1 Sidebar Menu Options	49
4.5 Flight Request Creation	50
4.0 Request Status	60
4.7 Live Flight	63
	60
	00

4.8 Flight Replay	74
4.9 Profile	77
4.10 My Drones	78
4.11 Incidents	82
4.12 Settings	84
4.13 Emergency and Termination	86
4.13.1 Emergency Declaration	86
4.13.2 Termination	88
5.0 Operator Role - Web	89
5.1 Registration	89
5.1.1 Recreational Pilots	90
5.1.2 Commercial Organisation	94
5.2 Sign-in with UAE PASS	101
5.3 UTM Home Dashboard & Navigation	103
5.3.1 Central Map Display	103
5.3.2 UTM Menu Options	108
5.3.3 Date Selector & Drone Flight Summary Status	110
5.3.4 Daily Timeline Bar & Legend	113
5.4 Drone Flight Requests	114
5.4.1 Viewing Flight Requests	114
5.4.2 Creating Flight Requests	116
5.4.3 Shielded Operations - Flight Request	118
5.5 Drone Flight History	119
5.6 Operator Users	123
5.7 Drones	127
5.8 Incident Reporting	131
5.9 Account	134
5.10 Language	138
5.11 Account Log Out	140
6.0 Feature Access	141
6.1 User Profile Access*	141
7.0 Knowledge Base	142
7.1 FAQs	142
7.2 Troubleshooting	143
8.0 Contact Information	144



1.0 Introduction

1.1 Overview

Welcome to the field of Unmanned Traffic Management (UTM). A UTM System consists of a set of services that are designed to facilitate the use of Unmanned Aerial Vehicles (UAV), autonomous or remotely piloted, in segregated or integrated airspace.

UTM is a mobile and web-based platform encompassing a host of tools and services that provide capabilities designed to assist end-users with the safe and efficient management of unmanned traffic in a defined airspace. *Two primary UTM users are catered for, UTM Authorities and Drone Operators.* The UTM provides these users with a set of services that enable them to safely and efficiently manage their operations.

Drone Operators are provided services allowing them to register themselves as drone operators, register their drones, apply for flight requests, receive situational awareness, prior to and during their flight, and be able to access their flight data post flight.

This user manual specifically focuses on guiding the Drone Operators on how to effectively use the system via both the web and mobile interface. It provides instructions on how to access the services and many additional features and functions available for use.

1.2 Purpose of the Manual

The purpose of the user manual is to provide Drone Operators with instructions and step by step guidance on how to use the system and implement the operator workflows along with more detailed information on the system's many detailed features and functions as a reference guide.

Note: Updates and changes to Manual will be ongoing based on user/stakeholder feedback and user's new requirements over time.

1.3 Prerequisites

It is assumed that the following steps have been completed prior to the use of this manual:

- 1. The UTM system has been deployed in an appropriate Staging Environment suitable for training UTM Operators.
- 2. Drone Operators should have a valid UAE PASS Account before signing up to UTM.
- 3. A suitable UTM Training Lab environment exists with adequately configured laptop/desktop computing facilities.
- 4. The UTM Training Lab has an adequate internet connection to facilitate connection with the UTM Staging Environment.
- 5. Drone Operators have access to a suitable outdoor location that has cellular data connectivity, and has been authorised by the appropriate authorities to conduct live drone flights.
- 6. Drone Operators have access to third party approved retro-fitted trackers for live telemetry as per the RemoteID standard.

If any one of the above pre-requisites is not available - please contact UTM Support (**Section 8.0**) for assistance (M-F, 9 am to 5 pm, excluding public holidays).



2.0 UTM Concepts, Role Based Access & Workflows

In order to understand a UTM system's capabilities and role within a larger framework of aviation management systems, it is important to be conversant with basic aviation and geographical terminology - as these will be used pervasively throughout this manual. The purpose of this chapter is to provide the user with an introduction to many of these terms and concepts, which often have different meanings from how they are used in everyday parlance.

No prior experience or knowledge is assumed other than that of a basic understanding of the English language (as this is the internationally accepted language of aviation) and how to perform basic (high-school or secondary school level) arithmetic and algebraic mathematical operations. Where possible, additional online references are provided in the appendix, if the user wishes to delve further into the subject matter.

However, for the purposes of using UTM - the material in this document is sufficient for its initial set up and use. We begin with a discussion of fundamental concepts of airspace, position, height/altitude & time before moving on to specific UTM concepts such as Role Based Access (RBA) and ending with UTM specific Workflow and Concepts.



2.1 Airspace

Fundamentally, a UTM system's primary purpose is to support the safe and efficient use of **Airspace**. Airspace can be defined as a volume of space having an arbitrary shape, extending from a lower altitude limit (may be from the ground, but not necessarily so) to an upper altitude limit and is defined and under the control of a sovereign nation which assumes responsibility for granting or denying access to the airspace as per its own rules and regulations. Airspaces can be further grouped according to their **Class**. Each Airspace Class, is defined as per flight rules, and interactions between manned aircraft and Air Traffic Control (ATC).



Figure 2-1(a): Airspace Class Concept

Airspace Classes are defined primarily by the national aviation regulator and are published and disseminated on an **Aeronautical Information Regulation And Control (AIRAC)** cycle which is usually every 28 days. The AIRAC cycle is followed to provide a uniform schedule of Airspace updates that can be followed by Airspace users, ensuring that they have the most up to date information available. A schedule

of AIRAC dates can be found at the following link maintained by the **International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO)**:

2022	2024	2025		2027		
2023	2024	2025	2020	2027	2028	2029
2023-01-26	2024-01-25	2025-01-23	2026-01-22	2027-01-21	2028-01-20	2029-01-18
2023-02-23	2024-02-22	2025-02-20	2026-02-19	2027-02-18	2028-02-17	2029-02-15
2023-03-23	2024-03-21	2025-03-20	2026-03-19	2027-03-18	2028-03-16	2029-03-15
2023-04-20	2024-04-18	2025-04-17	2026-04-16	2027-04-15	2028-04-13	2029-04-12
2023-05-18	2024-05-16	2025-05-15	2026-05-14	2027-05-13	2028-05-11	2029-05-10
2023-06-15	2024-06-13	2025-06-12	2026-06-11	2027-06-10	2028-06-08	2029-06-07
2023-07-13	2024-07-11	2025-07-10	2026-07-09	2027-07-08	2028-07-06	2029-07-05
2023-08-10	2024-08-08	2025-08-07	2026-08-06	2027-08-05	2028-08-03	2029-08-02
2023-09-07	2024-09-05	2025-09-04	2026-09-03	2027-09-02	2028-08-31	2029-08-30
2023-10-05	2024-10-03	2025-10-02	2026-10-01	2027-09-30	2028-09-28	2029-09-27
2023-11-02	2024-10-31	2025-10-30	2026-10-29	2027-10-28	2028-10-26	2029-10-25
2023-11-30	2024-11-28	2025-11-27	2026-11-26	2027-11-25	2028-11-23	2029-11-22
2023-12-28	2024-12-26	2025-12-25	2026-12-24	2027-12-23	2028-12-21	2029-12-20

https://www.icao.int/airnavigation/information-management/Pages/AIRAC.aspx

Figure 2-1(b): Airspace Class Cor	ncept
-----------------------------------	-------

Within an airspace class, further classification is possible by defining an **Airspace Area** which is an airspace of defined dimensions above the land areas or territorial waters of the State:

- 1. **Prohibited Area** within which the flight of aircraft is prohibited.
- 2. **Danger Area** within which activities dangerous to the flight of aircraft may exist at specified times.
- 3. **Restricted Area** within which the flight of aircraft is restricted in accordance with specific conditions.

2.2 Lateral Position

Another important concept that is core to a UTM's function is the ability to define an object's position in space. To accurately identify this location at any point of time, at

least three coordinates are required. AstraUTM uses **Latitude** and **Longitude** to plot a position on the Earth's surface and **Altitude** or **Height** to determine the object's vertical location above some fixed reference point.

Understanding an object's location in all three dimensions is essential to any UTM system that needs to track not only multiple objects but their positions relative to one another to ensure safety and security.

Latitude

Latitude is the angular distance North or South of the Equator and is defined in terms of degrees (360 degrees in a complete circle), minutes (60 minutes in each degree) and seconds (60 seconds in each minute). Latitude is reported in decimal form followed by a letter "N" or "S" indicating whether the Latitude Line is North or South of the equator respectively. The numeric value will always be between 0° and 90°.



Figure 2-2(a): Latitude Lines

Longitude

Longitude is the angular distance East or West of the 0° Meridian (a standard line of longitude arbitrarily defined as the 0° Longitude running from the North pole to the

South Pole through the locale of Greenwich in London - sometimes referred to as the Greenwich Meridian). Longitude is reported in decimal form followed by a letter "E" or "W" indicating whether the Longitude Line is East or West of the 0° Meridian respectively. The numeric value will always be between 0° and 180°.

Example:

54.786521E

54.786521° East of the 0° Meridian

This is equivalent to:

54°

47 minutes and

11.48 seconds East

Which can also be written as: 54° 47' 11.48" E



Figure 2-2(b): Longitude Lines



As an example of locating an exact location, if both these coordinates were taken, they would be defining the following location:



Figure 2-2(c): Example of position determination using Longitude and Latitude Coordinates (24.237867N, 54.786521E) or (24° 14′ 16.32″ N 54° 47′ 11.48″ E)



2.3 Vertical Position

Measuring an object's vertical separation involves establishing a common reference level known as a **datum.** Datum refers to a surface somewhat arbitrarily defined as zero elevation. Several datums exist and they all provide some indication of the vertical position of an object. It is important for UTM users to know the differences between these and to use the same reference datum when comparing the vertical position of different objects.

For the purposes of illustrating the different ways in which vertical distances can be reported, we will use the figure 2-3(a) below:



Figure 2–3(a): Vertical Datums

The **Topographic Surface** represented by the blue line above, actually follows the Earth's visible surface. Vertical distances measured from this line are known as the **Height** and are usually reported in feet or metres. This surface can change from over short time frames due to weather conditions altering the surface (e.g. shifting sand dunes).



A **Geoid** is an "average" level of the sea, defined by the Earth's gravity field, and does not take into account winds, currents or tides. Vertical distances that are measured in reference to this datum are reported as **Altitude above mean seal level** (**AMSL**) and are measured in feet or metres. This surface can shift more slowly over time as there are changes in the Earth's gravitational field that causes the "average" level of the Sea to change. In aviation this is referred to as **True Altitude**.

An **Ellipsoid**, is a mathematical surface that is a "best fit" for the geoid. This is an imaginary surface against which vertical distances are measured. Different ellipsoids can be defined for different purposes - but the most common one in use for mapping purposes is the **World Geodetic System 1984 (WGS84)** ellipsoid. As this is a mathematically constructed surface - it is not subject to change with time. The satellite based Global Positioning System (GPS) uses this datum, against which to report altitude.

Another datum is referenced to the **pressure level** of 29.92 in Hg (mercury) or 1013.25 mm Hg. This is an imaginary surface everywhere on which the measured atmospheric pressure would be at this value. Vertical distances measured against this datum is reported as **Pressure Altitude** and is reported in feet or metres.



In aviation, above 18,000 feet AMSL, vertical distances are reported as **Flight Levels (FL).** These are typically reported in feet only by omitting the trailing two zeros in the altitude and are only reported in 100's of feet:

Examples:

- 1. FL181 is 18,100 feet AMSL
- 2. FL200 is 20,000 feet AMSL
- 3. FL659 is 65,900 feet AMSL

It must be remembered that FL's are only used above 18,000 feet AMSL.

The figure below illustrates how these different datums may all result in different reporting vertical elevations for the same object.



Figure 2-3(b): Vertical Datums

It is important that the UTM uses a Common Altitude Reference System (CARS) to ensure that all altitudes/heights are being measured against a common datum and that relative vertical separations can be accurately measured.



By combining the Latitude, Longitude and Altitude/Height coordinates, the unique position in space of an object can be determined, combining this with a time coordinate allows us to fix the position in space and time.



2.4 Time

Along with an object's lateral and vertical position coordinates, it is important to also know the point in time at which these coordinates are valid - as the object's position may constantly fluctuate. For this purpose a global standard has been developed and adopted by all countries who partake in aviation activities and allows greater coordination of aerial activities by providing a common time reference. This system is known as **Coordinated Universal Time (UTC)** and is also sometimes referenced as **Zulu Time.** This is the time at the 0 degrees longitude.

Within the UTC system time is divided into days, hours, minutes, and seconds. Days are identified using the Gregorian calendar, but Julian day numbers can also be used. Each day contains 24 hours and each hour contains 60 minutes. The number of seconds in a minute is usually 60, but with an occasional leap second, it may be 61 or 59 instead.

Time Zones are defined relative to this longitude, decreasing in hourly and half hourly increments going west and increasing going east. An approximate 15 degrees change in longitude would result in a change in time by 1 hour, however in defining the time zones, national boundaries take precedent and these are more prevalently used in defining where a time zone starts and ends rather than the strict 15 degree shift in longitude. A map below illustrates this globally. As can be seen the UAE falls in the time zone of UTC+4 hours. It is important to note that UTC does not adjust or change for summertime adjustments that routinely set clocks forward (in summer) and backwards (in autumn) to help provide for greater daylight hours in many countries in northern and southern latitudes. UTC is a standard time reference that does not undergo any such seasonal adjustments. Times locally are reported as **Coordinated Local Time (LTC)** and have taken into account the adjustment from UTC. All times are reported using the 24-hour clock notation and this removes any ambiguity regarding whether it is a.m. or p.m that is being referred to.



Figure 2-4(a): Global Time Zones

Examples:

If it is Dec 12th 2023 13:41 UTC and we wish to know the time in Fujairah, we first determine which Time Zone Fujairah falls in. From the map below, it can be seen that Fujairah is in the UAE which is in the Time Zone UTC+4. Therefore the time in Fujairah will be:

Dec 12th 2023 13:41 + 4 hours = Dec 12th 2023 17:41 LTC

If it is Mar 17th 2023 01:41 LTC in Abu Dhabi and we wish to know the time in Manama, Bahrain, we first convert LTC to UTC (the time at the 0 degree longitude), then determine the Time Zone of Manama, Bahrain and convert from UTC to the final LTC. Therefore, in Abu Dhabi 01:41 LTC is in the the UTC+4 Time Zone and UTC would be:

Mar 17th (01:41 - 4) hours which is 21:41 the previous day

```
= Mar 16th 2023 21:41 UTC
```

We now convert this UTC to LTC for Manama, Bahrain. We notice from the map above that Manama is located in the Time Zone UTC + 3 hours. Therefore the time in Manama would be:

Mar 16th 2023 21:41 + 3 hours

```
= Mar 17th 2023 00:41 LTC
```

These examples are designed to illustrate that not only is it important to consider the time, but the date as well, as UTC to LTC conversions and vice versa may result in a date change as well.

2.5 Operation Type

With respect to remotely and/or autonomously piloted vehicles, a distinction is made with regard to the visual range within which the flight is conducted. This range is determined by the ability of the pilot or operator to visually identify the vehicle without any artificial aids (with the exception of prescription spectacles or contact lenses). Artificial aids such as binoculars, telescopes etc. are not permitted as they may obscure the pilot's peripheral vision. Three categories of Operation Types are identified:

- 1. Visual Line of Sight (VLOS)
- 2. Extended Visual Line of Sight (EVLOS)
- 3. Beyond Visual Line of Sight (BVLOS)

Visual Line of Sight (VLOS) Operations

VLOS operations are conducted with the pilot or operator of the vehicle maintaining complete visual contact with the vehicle at all times during the operation. The pilot must be able to clearly see the vehicle and the surrounding airspace at all times that the vehicle is airborne. This implies that they are capable of maintaining a direct line of sight connection with the vehicle at all times, and that the vehicle is not partially or fully obscured by any weather phenomenon (e.g. fog, precipitation, dust storms), terrain (e.g. hills, mountains, trees) or artificial obstacles (e.g. buildings, towers). VLOS operations allow the pilot to monitor the vehicle's flight path and allow the pilot to make manoeuvres to avoid potential collisions.

Extended Visual Line of Sight (EVLOS) Operations

EVLOS operations allow the flight of a vehicle beyond the visual sight of the pilot by using trained observers to keep the aircraft within their view, collision avoidance is still achieved through the unaided (i.e. use of artificial aids to enhance vision, other than spectacles and contact lenses are not permitted) visual observation of a human.

Beyond Visual Line of Sight (BVLOS) Operations

BVLOS operations are defined as the operation of a vehicle beyond a distance where the pilot is able to respond to or avoid other airspace users by direct visual means. In this type of operation, the vehicle is flown completely out of the visual sight of any human.

2.6 Role Based Access (RBA) in UTM

UTM employs a robust Role Based Access (RBA) to the system that enables a degree of flexibility in configuring access to the various features and functionalities available to users of the system. UTM consists of a set of Services. Within each Service are a set of features or functionalities. Access to these features (known as *Permissions*) and what an Operator can do within this feature (known as *Privileges*) is managed by the Super Administrator of the system and is at the heart of UTM's RBA.

In order to understand how Operators can leverage the maximum advantage of such a system - it is important to understand that there are various **User Types, Roles and Profiles** in UTM .

This manual focuses on explaining the UTM workflows for the Operator user type of which there are two types: that of the **Organisation Manager Role** and that of the **Pilot Role (Recreational or Commercial).**

Operator User Roles

Organisation Manager Role

Often, legal entities other than individuals (e.g hobbyists or recreational drone pilots), wish to use drones for commercial or official purposes. For this to occur an Organisation must first be successfully registered with UTM by the Organisation Manager assigned to manage the drones and pilots that the organisation is legally responsible for. The role of Organisation Manager is designated either to a single user or multiple users within the organisation and has the responsibility for maintaining the organisation's registry of pilots, drones, flight requests and coordination with Authorities and Approvers.

Pilot Role

The UTM system offers a smooth navigation experience to drone pilots through a user-friendly interface granting pilots access to vital information necessary for



conducting drone operations. Pilots acting in their own individual capacity (and not on behalf of another legal entity), are known as **Recreational Pilots** and can directly register themselves and their drones with UTM, as well as create and submit flight plan requests. However, if a Pilot wishes to fly on behalf of a legal entity (other than him/herself) the Pilot, known as a **Commercial Pilot**, cannot register directly with UTM and must be registered by that entity's Organisational Manager.

User Profiles

For each of the Operator Roles mentioned above, **User Profiles** may be defined as per the relevant permissions and privileges granted by the system's Super Administrator.



2.7 UTM Operator Workflows

The following section outlines a typical use case within UTM for an individual pilot (i.e a Recreational drone operator) wishing to conduct an operation at a particular time in a particular location. The basic operator workflow consists of the following steps:

- 1. Pilot Registers and makes payment for Self & Drones
- 2. Pilot Applies for flight requests
- 3. Rules are Applied to flight requests
- 4. UTM System/Approver Approves flight requests
- 5. Pilot Conducts Flights
- 6. Admin Monitors Flights
- 7. Flights Conform to Rules
- 8. Flights Generates Notifications/Warnings and Alerts (Optional)
- 9. Admin and Pilot Communicate with each other (Optional)
- 10. Post Flight Report Generation



2.8 UTM Concepts

As can be seen in the above basic workflow, several concepts have been introduced that must be first understood.

UTM Rules

Rules are in their basic form, conditions that must be satisfied at all times in order for the UTM system to function coherently, efficiently and safely. However, there is wide latitude in how these rules can be established and UTM provides a flexible rules engine that can be configured and modified by the UTM in accordance with evolving standards, technology and regulations. Rules can be grouped around several broad areas of consideration:

- 1. **Airspace** lateral geographical boundaries with starting and ending heights or altitudes with reference to a specific datum. What is and what is not permitted within these Airspaces would constitute one type of rule.
- 2. **Conformance** these rules pertain to what conditions must be met in order to be within acceptable limits of existing national regulations that promote safety and security.
- 3. **Risk** rules established to assess the likelihood of an adverse event that may occur and that may cause the damage or loss to life and/or property.
- 4. **Monetization** the ability to assign monetary compensation for granting access to airspace based upon a wide range of parameters.
- 5. **Registry** defining what information must be elicited from system users in order to provide a pre-defined level of service.



Flight Requests

In order for UAVs to operate safely in segregated or integrated airspace, it would be prudent to establish some form of flight authorizations (referred to here as flight requests). A *flight request* authorisation is an authorisation by an Approver (so authorised by a competent national body and created by the SA or Admin) allowing a Pilot to conduct a Drone flight at a particular location, time and under a set of well understood and accepted conditions. A flight request is applied for by a Pilot or Organisational Manager Role and can exist in a particular status:

- 1. **New** Flight request has been applied for but not yet approved.
- Awaiting Pre-Approval Flight request requires approval by a higher authority.
- 3. **Amended** Flight request has been approved but with modifications made by Approver and is awaiting acceptance by the Pilot and/or Organisation Manager.
- Approved Flight request has been accepted by both Approver and Pilot or Organisational Role.
- 5. **Rejected** Approver has rejected the flight request.
- 6. **In Progress** Flight linked to a flight request that has been Approved is currently underway.
- 7. **Cancelled** Flight request has been voluntarily cancelled by the Pilot or Organisation Manager prior to the flight commencing.
- 8. **Completed** Flight has been concluded by the pilot and reported as such, rendering the flight request invalid.
- Terminated Flight that was in approved status can be terminated by the Approver at any time. Also, flight requests that were In New state and not approved up until the End time, will be terminated automatically.



Flights

A *Flight* is defined as a UAV operation (remotely piloted or autonomous) that exceeds a predefined height above the take-off point for a predefined minimum time period and may or may not be linked to a flight request. Flights themselves can exist in a variety of states:

- 1. **Pending** The Flight is associated with a flight request that has not been Approved (i.e. the flight request Status is New).
- 2. **Scheduled** The Flight is associated with a valid flight request that is Approved for a future time of operation.
- 3. **Active** The Flight is associated with an Approved flight request and is currently underway.
- 4. Breach The Flight is associated with an Approved flight request but is in breach of the established conformance conditions of the flight request. Conformance Conditions of the Flight are associated with and may result in the generation of the following *warnings and/or alerts*:
 - a. *Boundary* The Flight has breached the lateral limits of its Approved flight request.
 - b. *Height* The Flight is in operation above its prescribed maximum height limit.
 - c. *Time* The Flight is in operation before or after its Approved flight request time limit.
 - d. *Proximity* The Flight is in operation within the Admin's established minimum separation criteria from Manned or Unmanned traffic.
- 5. **Completed** The Flight has been completed and the associated flight request is also completed.
- 6. **Paused** The Flight has been temporarily paused under the instructions of the Admin, this is accompanied by an instruction to the Pilot and Organisation Manager to land the drone immediately. Flights may or may not resume at the discretion of the Admin.
- 7. **Cancelled** The Flight has been voluntarily ceased at the discretion of the Pilot.



8. **Terminated** - The Flight has been instructed to cease operations by the Admin. The Flight will not be permitted to continue and the associated flight request also enters a Terminated Status.

Before illustrating these functions, it is important to understand the basic layout of the UTM Dashboard and how it is navigated. This has been described in the following sections for both the Mobile and Web applications and aims to familiarise operators with the UTM dashboard, its navigation, and the above typical operator workflow outlined in Section 2.7.



3.0 UTM Graphical User Interface

Before illustrating the above functions and how to execute a typical workflow, operators need to familiarise themselves with UTM's Graphical User Interface (GUI). UTM implements a highly intuitive and easy to use map based interface that allows users to rapidly navigate to the information that is most pertinent to their current state of use.

This is explained in detail in the following sections for both the Mobile and Web applications and will provide an overall understanding of the basic navigation tools and principles to facilitate a more efficient flight request creation process.



4.0 Operator Role - Mobile

Access to UTM via the Mobile App is available only to Operators. The following section outlines the UTM workflow sequence, features, and functions available for Operators using the Mobile App (see Section 5 for Web access). There are two types of Operators: the Organisation Manager and Pilot (Recreational or Commercial). Both have similar access to the system, but the Organisation Manager has additional features that enable them to register the organisation's pilots, since commercial pilots cannot register themselves, and to manage the organisation's details.

Often, legal entities other than individuals (e.g Hobbyists or Recreational drone pilots), wish to use drones for commercial or official purposes. For this to occur an Organisation Manager must be assigned to first register the legal entity or organisation with UTM. Once registration is complete, and the organisation has been approved and registration payments made, the Organisation Manager can begin to create and manage the pilots and drones that the organisation is legally responsible for. The responsibility of managing and maintaining the organisation's registries of pilots, drones and flight requests, as well as coordinating with Authorities and Approvers, is often assigned to a single user but is not a restriction - multiple users can be designated as well.



4.1 Set Up Account

1. Download the **UAE Drones App** on your smartphone from the Apple App Store or Google Play Store.



Figure 4-1: UAE Drones - App Store

Note: The latest version of the App will be available once uploaded to the App and Google Play stores.

4.2 Onboarding

- 1. Open the **UAE Drones App** on the mobile device.
- 2. Select the language for the Mobile App and tap **Next.**
- 3. The Mobile App provides onboarding screens of the features offered by the App as shown in Fig. 4-2(a) below.
- 4. Tap **Next ->** to view features available.





Figure 4-2(a): Pilot Onboarding Screens - II





Fig 4-2(b): Welcome Screen

- 5. Once the OnBoarding screens are complete, the **Sign in** page for the UTM App will appear as seen above.
- 6. To be able to **Sign in with UAE PASS** and access UTM, operators must first have an account with UAE PASS (See Section 4.3).



4.3 Registration

All Operators must sign up and register for an account with **UAE PASS**, either on the Mobile App or Web, before they can access UTM. This section focuses on how Operators can register for an account using the Mobile App (See Section 5 for Web).

Recreational Pilots are able to directly register for an account on UTM with UAE PASS. Commercial Pilots must contact their respective Organisation Manager for account creation. The latter first requires that the Organisation be successfully registered within the system (See section 4.3.2 below).

Pilots are registered in the following three ways:

- 1. Pilots register themselves with UAE PASS (*Recreational only Mobile & Web*))
- Organisation Manager registers a Pilot (Commercial/ Government Mobile & Web)
- 3. Admin registers a Pilot (*Web only)*)



4.3.1 Recreational



Figure 4-3(a): Registration - Recreational Pilot

1. To create a new **Recreational Account** select **Sign up.** This feature is available for recreational pilots only.

Note: Commercial /Government pilots should contact their respective Organisation Manager for account creation which is done via the Web or Mobile Application.

2:58 😫 🛤 🖽 🏽 🛎 🗹 🛛 🔌 🔌 🍕 🖓 🖓 🖓	19:29 🗲 🧰	
nationalitat 🔓 👩	×	Login Request Alert
Create a Recreational Account	â	LOGIN REQUEST FROM
Applicant Information (concern)	Login to UAE PASS	GCAA UTM System MOB
Recreational Account ×	Sabeena@astrautm.com	REQUEST DETAILS
🔞 Sign up with UAE PASS	Remember me	Date & Time 26 Jun 24, 09:36
Already have an account? Sign in	Don't have UAEPASS account? Create new account Recover your account	
Tarcely Harris (Health)		
(Marine)	м	
And the second sec	Copyright © 2024 UAE PASS All rights reserved House, tems	Decline Confirm

Figure 4-3(b)- Sign up with UAE PASS & Login to UAE PASS - Recreational

- Click Sign-up with UAE PASS. For users who don't have a UAE PASS, a UAE PASS account must be created before registering on UTM.
- 3. The user will be directed to the UAE PASS App, already installed on the user's device, where the user will be prompted to confirm that the UTM App is requesting login with UAE PASS. Click **Confirm**. Once confirmed user will be directed back to UTM to complete the registration form as seen below in Fig 4-3(c).
- 4. If a user does not have UAE PASS App on their phone, the user must login through UAE PASS using their Emirates Id, email, or mobile number, as seen above. This will trigger an authorisation request to the device on which the UAE PASS App has been installed. Once users have been authorised by the UAE PASS App using their pre-configured PIN or fingerprint or Face ID, users will be redirected back to UTM to complete the registration form as seen below in Fig 4-3(c)).

الهيئــة الـعــامــة للطيـــران الـمـدنـــي GENERAL CIVIL AVIATION AUTHORITY



9:24	A ?: ≥ 37%	9:24 Full Name (Arabic)	🏝 ବି: 🗷 🔒 37%	9:25	A 🙃 🖬 🛛 37%
لـعــامــة للطيـــران الـمــذنــي GENERAL CIVIL AVIATION AU	الهيئـة ا JTHORITY	Enter your full name (arab	ic)	Identification In Passport No	Iformation (Mandatory)
Welcome to U	AE Drones	Family Name (Arabic)		Enter your passport no	
Create an account so you can m	Create an account so you can manage your drone flights		rabic)	Passport Place Of Issue	
Applicant Information	(Mandatory)	Alias (Arabic)		Select your passport place of issue	
Country of Residence		Enter your alias (arabic)		Passport Issue D	ate
United Arab Emirates	\sim	Date of Birth		Select your Pass	port Issue Date
First Name		Select your Date of Birth		Passport Expiry [Date
Sabeena		Place Of Birth		Select your Passport Expiry Date	
Last Name		Select your place of birth	~	Emirates ID Num	her
Ahmed		Gender		784	
Full Name (Arabic)		Select your gender	~	Emirates ID Expir	v
Enter your full name (arab	ic)	Nationality		Select your Emira	ates ID Expiry
Continu	ie	Continu	Je	Continue	
Already have an acco	unt? Login Now	Already have an acco	unt? Login Now	Already have	an account? Login Now
Ξ Ο		= 0	\triangleleft	=	
	9:25	🔌 रू 🖬 🕽 37%	9:39 Ø 🍎 🎮 💩) ه چ چ	41%
	9:25 Account Informat	🔌 रू 🖬 🛿 37% tion (Mandatory)	9:39 📀 📦 💩 Attachments (Mar	ې چ کې او	41%
	9:25 Account Informat Email	الله الله الله الله الله الله الله الله	9:39 © C 🛤 💩 Attachments (Mar Passport	भ्रे के 🖬 🕯	41%
	9:25 Account Informat Email sabeena@astrau	کې کې ۲۵ کې ۲ کې ۲	9:39 © C M a Attachments (Mar Passport	እ ବ 🖬 🕯	41%
	9:25 Account Informat Email sabeena@astrau Mobile Number	ک ک ۵۵۳% tion (Mandatory) ıtm.com	9:39 © I a a Attachments (Mar Passport	🔌 रू 🖬 🕯 ndatory)	41%
	9:25 Account Informati Email sabeena@astrau Mobile Number +971 ~ 544143	ک ک ۵۵۳% tion (Mandatory) utm.com	9:39 ⊘ ⊇ № ۵ Attachments (Mar Passport ⊥ File Type: pdf UAE Visa ↓ File Type: pdf	্ব জ 🖬 🕯	41%
	9:25 Account Informat Email sabeena@astrau Mobile Number +971 ∨ 544143 Phone Number	ک ک ۵۵۵۵ tion (Mandatory) utm.com	9:39 O H A Attachments (Mar Passport File Type: pdf UAE Visa File Type: pdf Emirates ID	৯ হু 🖬 🕯	41%
	9:25 Account Informat Email sabeena@astrau Mobile Number +971 ~ 544143 Phone Number	کی کہ ۲۵ ۵37% tion (Mandatory) utm.com 023	9:39 ⊘ ⊇ № ۵ Attachments (Mar Passport	ম হ 🖬 🕯	41%
	9:25 Account Information Email sabeena@astrau Mobile Number +971 ~ 544143 Phone Number	ک ک ۵۵۳% tion (Mandatory) یادس.com 023	9:39 ⊘ ♥ № ۵ Attachments (Mar Passport	े के ब ndatory) icate	41%
	9:25 Account Information Email sabeena@astrau Mobile Number +971 \sigma 544143 Phone Number +971 \sigma xx xxx xx Phone Number	ک ک ۵۵۲% tion (Mandatory) utm.com 023 exx	9:39 ⊘ ▶ № ۵ Attachments (Mar Passport	الله الله الله الله الله الله الله الله	41%
	9:25 Account Information Email Sabeena@astrau Mobile Number $+971 \sim 544143$ Phone Number $+971 \sim xx xx xx$ Declaration of Info State	کی کہ ت 237% tion (Mandatory) utm.com 023 cox	9:39 O M Attachments (Mar Passport	م المعادي المعادي نها معادي المعادي معادي معادي مع معادي المعادي معادي معادي معادي معادي مع معادي المعادي معادي معادي معادي معادي مع معادي المعادي المعادي المعادي المعادي المعادي المعادي المعادي معادي معادي معادي معادي معادي معادي معادي معادي مع معادي المعادي المعادي المعادي معادي م معادي معادي	41%
	9:25 Account Information Email Sabeena@astrau Mobile Number +971 \sigma 544143 Phone Number +971 \sigma xx xx xx Declaration of Info State Select your state	ک ک ۵ ۵۵۳% tion (Mandatory) utm.com 023 cox	9:39 ⊘ ♥ № ۵ Attachments (Mar Passport	» ≈ □ ndatory)	41%
	9:25 Account Information Email sabeena@astrau Mobile Number +971 \sigma 544143 Phone Number +971 \sigma xx xxx xx Declaration of Info State Select your state City	دید ition (Mandatory) utm.com 023 cxx Formation (Mandatory)	9:39 ⊘ ► N Attachments (Mar Passport	المعادية ا معادية المعادية المعادي معادية المعادية المعادي معادي معادية المعادية المعادي معادية المعادية المعادية المعادية المعادية المعادية المعادية المعادي المعادية المعادية المعادية المعادية المعادي	
	9:25 Account Informati Email sabeena@astrau Mobile Number +971 ∨ 544143 Phone Number +971 ∨ xx xxx xx Declaration of Inf State Select your state City Select your city		9:39 ♥ ♥ ₩ ۵ Attachments (Mar Passport	الله الله الله الله الله الله الله الله	41%
	9:25 Account Informati Email sabeena@astrau Mobile Number +971 ∨ 544143 Phone Number +971 ∨ xx xxx xx Declaration of Inf State State State State State Select your state City		9:39 © I A Attachments (Mar Passport	» ≈ ■ ndatory) icate icat	41%
	9:25 Account Information Email Sabeena@astrau Mobile Number +971 ~ 544143 Phone Number +971 ~ xx xxx xx Declaration of Info State Select your state City Select your city Calready have an		9:39 © I A Attachments (Mar Passport T File Type: pdf UAE Visa T File Type: pdf Emirates ID T File Type: pdf Pilot Training Certiff T File Type: pdf Upload Drone Opera T File Type: pdg Jagree to the C Already have	» ≈ □ hdatory) hdatory) icate icate ator Photograph jpg Terms and Conditions ontinue an account? Sign.In	41%

Figure 4-3(c)- Registration Forms - Recreational

- 5. If users have been verified by the UAE PASS portal the forms will auto populate with relevant information of the user, which includes their **Emirates ID.**
- 6. If the user is not verified they will not see their Emirates ID.
- 7. Enter the remaining information and attach any supporting documents.
- 8. Agree to **Terms and Conditions** then click **Continue**.
- Upon completing the forms the system will auto-log the user into the UTM
 Dashboard as seen below.
- 10. Pilots are instructed to register at least one drone in order for their profile to be approved. Once user profile is approved, an email is sent requesting registration payment of 100 AED be made before user can start creating flight requests.



Figure 4-3(d)- UTM Dashboard & Menu Options - Recreational


Sign in with UAE PASS

2:53 û 🖿 🗷 💩 🗹 🗶 🔌 🗞 🔊 💷 🗎		4:45 🛯 ➡ 🖻 💩 🗹 🗹	💐 오 📚 al 🗎
6	Login Request Alert		ia
الهيئ قالعامة للطيران المدنين GENERAL CIVIL AVIATION AUTHORITY	LOGIN REQUEST FROM	GLALANDA, DECLART, A	
	GCAA UTM System MOB		
		Select your accou	nt
	REQUEST DETAILS		
Sign in with UAE PASS	Date & Time 26 Jun 24, 09:36	Recreational	©
or		Commercial	Ø
Don't have a Recreational account? <u>Sign up</u> Don't have a Commercial account? <u>Sign up</u>		N	lext
ैंA English	Decline		

Figure 4-3(e)- Login with UAE PASS

- 1. If an account has already been setup, user will **Sign in with UAE PASS** the next time access to UTM is required.
- 2. Open App and click **Sign in with UAE PASS**
- 3. UAE PASS authorises the user and redirects them to UTM App once authorised.
- 4. User selects the account to sign into (either Recreational or Commercial) if more than one account has been linked to the user's UAE PASS as seen above.
- 5. Once an account has been selected the UTM will redirect the user to the UTM Dashboard for that account.

4.3.2 Commercial Organisation



Figure 4-3(f): Registration - Commercial Organisation

- Commercial pilots can Sign in with UAE PASS only once they have their account created by the Organisation Manager and have linked it with UAE PASS. This first requires that the Organisation Manager successfully registers the Organisation, and themselves, as described below.
- To register a Commercial Organisation select Sign up where it says "Dont have a commercial account?" (See Section 5.1.2 for registration via the Web).

14:00 🕜 🕈 🗩	19:29 🕈 👘 💼	
٨	×	Login Request Alert
		LOGIN REQUEST FROM
Create Organisation account so you can manage your flights	Login to UAE PASS	GCAA UTM System MOB
Register Organisation X	Sabeena@astrautm.com	REQUEST DETAILS
C	Remember me	Oate & Time 26 Jun 24, 09:36
Already have an account? Login Now	Don't have UAEPASS account? Create new account Recover your account	
Owner or Representative Name (Arabic)		
Company Name Company Name		
Continue	16	
Already have an account? Login Now	Copyright © 2024 UAE PASS All rights reserved	Decline Confirm

Figure 4-3(g)- Sign up with UAE PASS & Login to UAE PASS - Organisation

- 3. Click Sign-up with UAE PASS to be directed to the UAE PASS Login page
- 4. User must confirm that the UTM App is requesting login through UAE PASS or enter their Emirates Id, email, or mobile number if UAE PASS has been installed on another device. This will trigger an authorisation request to their UAE PASS device(UAE PASS App). For users who don't have a UAE PASS, a UAE PASS account must be created before registering on UTM.
- 5. Once users have been authorised by the UAE PASS App using their pre-configured PIN or fingerprint or Face ID, users will be redirected back to the UTM system to complete the registration form as seen below.

الهيئــة الـعــامــة للطيـــران الـمـدنـــي GENERAL CIVIL AVIATION AUTHORITY



Trade License Number Enter your trade license number Establishment Card Number Enter your establishment card number	Upload Establishment Card
Enter your trade license number Establishment Card Number Enter your establishment card number	▲ File Type: pdf
Establishment Card Number Enter your establishment card number	Unio ad Unio anni ad Airenaft On anctar
Enter your establishment card number	Upload Unmanned Aircraft Operator
	Authorisation From GCAA
Company Emirates	个, File Type: pdf
Select your company emirates	Upload Company Owner Passport
	Upload Company Owner Emirates ID
	Ĵ File Type: pdf
	Upload Authorised Personnel Supporting
Select your UOA Expiry Date From GCAA	Document
Trade license expiry date	
Select your Trade license expiry date	Operator Information (Mandatory)
Organisation Attachments	First Name
Upload Trade License	Sabeena
	Last Name
Upload Establishment Card	Ahmed
Continue	Continue
Already have an account? Login here	Already have an account? Login here
9:06 🛤 🦄 🔍 🛜 🖬 🕯 92%	9:06 🚾 🏨 🖓 🎘 🖬 🕅 92%
Identification Information (Mandatory)	Account Information (Mandatory)
Enter your passport no	sabeena@astrautm.com
	Mobile
Select your passport place of issue 🗸	+971 ~ 544143023
Passport Issue Date	Phone
Select your Passport Issue Date	+971 🗸 xx xxx xxxx
Passport Expiry Date	Declaration of Information
Select your Passport Expiry Date	State
Emirates ID No.	Select your state V
	City
784	
784 Emirates ID Expiry Date	Select your city
784 Emirates ID Expiry Date	Select your city Attachments
784 Emirates ID Expiry Date Select your Emirates ID Expiry Date	Select your city Attachments Passport
784 Emirates ID Expiry Date Select your Emirates ID Expiry Date Account Information (Mandatory) Email	Select your city ~ Attachments Passport
784 Emirates ID Expiry Date Select your Emirates ID Expiry Date Account Information (Mandatory) Email sabeena@astrautm.com	Select your city
784 Emirates ID Expiry Date Select your Emirates ID Expiry Date Account Information (Mandatory) Email sabeena@astrautm.com	Select your city Attachments Passport Tile Type: pdf UAE Visa Continue
	Address Enter your address UOA Expiry Date From GCAA Select your UOA Expiry Date From GCAA Trade license expiry date Select your Trade license expiry date Organisation Attachments Upload Trade License File Type: pdf Upload Establishment Card Continue Already have an account? Login here 9.06 Passport No Enter your passport no Passport Issue Date Select your Passport Issue Date Select your Passport Issue Date Select your Passport Issue Date Passport Expiry Date Select your Passport Issue Date

Figure 4-3(h)- Registration Forms - Commercial Organisation



9:06 🚥	🔉 🛇 🗟 🖾 🗐 92%	DUBAI 14:26 1 중 ■
+971 🗸 xx xxx xxx	x	Attachments (Mandatory)
Declaration of Info	rmation	Upload Passport
State		C [↑] D File type: pdf
Select your state	~	
City		
Select your city	~	File type: pdf
Attachments		8
Passport		
file Type: pdf		Approval Required
UAE Visa		We have received your account creation request. It is now being reviewed, you will receive an email notification once the review is complete.
file Type: pdf		
Upload Emirates ID		OK
		Upload Drone Operator Photograph
Upload Drone Operat	or Photograph	8
▲ File Type: jpeg, jp	og	doc638536983496128987.jpg View
Cor	ntinue	Continue
Already have an a	account? Login here	Already have an account? Login Now
_	-	Aready have an account: Login Now

Figure 4-3(i)- Registration - Commercial Organisation

- Select the type of organisation to be registered from the drop down menu labelled Topic/Purpose. Select either:
 - a. Commercial
 - b. Private Business or
 - c. Government User
- Continue completing the forms. If users have been verified by UAE PASS the forms will have auto populated with relevant information of the user, which includes their Emirates ID.
- 8. If the user is not verified they will not see their Emirates ID.
- 9. Enter the remaining information and attach any supporting documents.
- 10. Agree to **Terms and Conditions** then click **Continue**.
- 11. Upon submission of forms a popup notification will appear confirming the organisation's account creation request has been received and is being reviewed for approval. User will receive an email of outcome once review is complete.





۵)

→ Forward

← Reply

1:36 PM (O minutes ago) ☆ 🙂 🕤 🚦

Figure 4-3(j): Approval of Organisation via Email

- 12. Approval of the Organisation and organisation manager's user profile also requires at least one drone be registered under the account.
- 13. Once approval has been granted , an email will be sent requesting a registration payment of 5000 AED be made before proceeding to use UTM.
- 14. When both approval and payment is complete, user can Sign in using UAE PASS from the welcome screen, and begin to register pilots and create flight requests.



Figure 4-3(k): UTM Dashboard & Menu Options - Organisation Manager

Commercial Pilot Account Creation



Commercial pilots must be registered by their respective Organisation Manager before accessing UTM.



Figure 4-3(l): Creation of Commercial Pilot Account

- 1. The Organisation Manager signs into their UTM account with UAE PASS and selects **Team** from the menu options to create a commercial pilot's account.
- Enter the required details and upload supporting documents of the pilot and click Add.

Q Search mail		±≓.	
← ♥ ① ₪			
Welcome to			
a Team UTM <astra-no to me 💌</astra-no 	reply@astrautm.com>		
Welcome Your account was suc Best regards, Team UTM.	cessfully created <u>click here</u> to link your account with UA	AE Pass	
(Reply	→ Forward		

Figure 4-3(m): Link with UAE PASS - Commercial Pilot Account

- 3. An automatically generated email will be sent informing pilot of successful account creation prompting them to link their newly created account with UAE PASS, whilst at the same time the pilot's details will be sent to the Admin for approval.
- 4. Once the pilot has linked their account with UAE PASS and their user account has successfully been approved, an email is sent requesting a registration payment of 100 AED be made. Once payment has been processed pilot can began creating flight requests.



4.4 Dashboard

The **Home Dashboard** of the UAE Drones App is the main page of the application which provides users access to the features and functions of the system that help navigate and operate UTM.



Figure 4-4(a): Pilot Dashboard

It houses the sidebar navigation menu, the button for which is visible in the top left corner, a quick summary of the current situational awareness which includes weather information, flight requests, drones registered under the profile, as well as quick links to **Flight Request List, Flight Replay** and **Profile** of the user.

The App's UTM Home Dashboard (See Fig 4-4(a) consists of the following features :

- A. Sidebar Menu Options
- B. **Broadcast Messages:** This feature allows the users to view broadcast messages located in the top right corner of screen.
- C. **Quick Menu Options:** This feature of 4 tabs is located along the top of the screen and allows the user to have quick access to the following menu options:
 - a. Dashboard



- b. Request List
- c. Flight Replay
- d. Profile

Users can simply tap on these tabs to switch between multiple tabs.

- D. Weather Information: This feature provides the user with weather information for the current location of the device, such as temperature, pressure and wind.
- E. **Flight Request Statistics:** This feature provides users with information on the total number of flight requests submitted and a count of the flights that have been Completed, Approved and Rejected.
- F. **Registered Drones:** This feature displays the number of drones registered under the pilot's profile.
- G. **Flight Request Creation:** This feature at the bottom of the screen allows the user to create and submit flight requests.



4.4.1 Sidebar Menu Options

The sidebar menu options allow the operator user to navigate the features of the app. Note: menu options will slightly differ based on whether the operator is an Organisation Manager or an individual Recreational/Commercial pilot.

Tap on the **Menu icon** in the top left corner of the App's main screen to view all the sidebar menu options, as listed below. These are menu options for an Organisation Manager. Individual Recreational/Commercial pilots will not have access to Organisation Details and Team.

- Dashboard
- Organisation Details
- Request List
- Flight Replay
- Profile
- Team
- My Drones
- Contact Us
- Incidents
- Settings



4.5 Flight Request Creation

This section outlines the steps involved in submitting a flight request, the process for which starts from the Dashboard. At a glance, the Dashboard also provides the weather conditions for the day, as well as an overall count of the total number of Flight requests submitted, and the number of flights that have been **Completed**, **Approved** or **Rejected**. (See Fig 4-5(a) below).





1. For new accounts : approval, and registration payments for pilot licence and organisation certificate is required, and at least one drone registered, before a flight request can be created. The user will receive a pop up notification informing them of this. To add a drone and have it approved See Section 4.10.



Flight Request Creation:

1:18 🕈	🗢 😣	1200 T	1:18 🕇	84
	Q			
	E. A		Q Palm Jumeirah	S Cancel
Dashboard Req List			The Palm Jumeirah The Palm Jumeirah	
<u>ن</u> 44.0°c	Pressure: 995.0 hPa Wind: 7.0 m/s		Kempinski Hotel & Residences Palm Jumeirah Kempinski Hotel & Residences Palm Jumeirah	
~~~~	Completed 1	**************************************	Waldorf Astoria Dubai Palm Jumeirah Waldorf Astoria Dubai Palm Jumeirah	
$\succeq$	Approved 0		Fairmont Palm Jumeirah Fairmont Palm Jumeirah	
Total Flights <b>3</b>	Rejected	Shifa International Hospitals DWC	Royal Club Palm Jumeirah Dubai Royal Club Palm Jumeirah Dubai	
My Drones	View All →		Dubai Palm Jumeirah Dubai Palm Jumeirah	
1 Drones	Add	Situational Awareness	qwertyu	i o p
		::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::	asdfghj	k I
		Wind: 3.0 m/s	☆ z x c v b n	m 🗵
	ht Demuset	Next	123 space	search
	int <del>ke</del> quest		<b></b>	Ŷ

Figure 4-5(b): Flight Request Creation - I

- Once the user profile and drone(s) have been approved by the Admin and registration payments have been successfully processed, the pilot can begin creating flight requests.
- 2. Select the **Create Flight Request** tab located at the bottom of the Dashboard.
- 3. The pilot users will be provided with the situational awareness for the location where the flight request is to be created, highlighted by the brown pin as seen above in Fig 4-5(b). This situational awareness will include weather, airspace, and live traffic information (manned and unmanned).
- 4. Tap on the Search button, the first of four map control options located on the right side of the screen, as seen above, and enter the Location of where the flight request is to be created.



Fig 4-5(c): Flight Request creation - II

- 5. Tap on the screen to drop the pin on the precise area of the flight request, and to obtain the Situational Awareness for that location which includes the weather and airspace. Further details regarding the Weather and Airspace can be obtained by clicking on the drop down arrow located in the lower half of the screen in the section labelled situational awareness.
- 6. Tap on the second control option to select one of three modes in which to view the map interface: **Dark Mode, Light Mode** or **Satellite Mode**.





Figure 4-5(d): Flight Request showing manned traffic - III

- 7. Clicking the third control option allows the user to view live traffic (manned and unmanned) within 5km of the device being used the user's "current location". (For reference the live traffic will appear as above but on the screen to the right). Live traffic at the actual location of the flight request will only be seen (within a 5km radius) once the flight has actually started.
- Tap on the fourth option to reset and be navigated back to the user's location (Home) if required.
- 9. Select **Next ->** once the location for the flight request has been selected.





Fig 4-5(e): Flight Request creation - IV

- 10. Select one of the following options to define the operational area as seen above:
  - Circle
  - Polygon
  - Waypoint
- 11. When defining an area of operation using a circle, recreational pilots are limited to a maximum radius of 500m and altitude of 400 ft and a similar corresponding area when using a polygon.
- 12. Select and drag the points on the polygon to accurately define the area. For a circle, pilot users will have the option to adjust the radius for a more precise location. For waypoints, the pilots can define the path of their flight.
- 13. Tap on the defined area of the flight path to add vertices and create a more accurate area for the flight request. Tap and hold to delete a vertice. (NB. Maximum number of vertices that can be added are 20)



- 14. Select the **Altitude** of the flight by dragging marker to required height.
- 15. Select **Next** -> when done. **†** 83 - - - 6 **1** – 🗐 - 🐻 - 💮 IJ I Activity Purpose Location Detail Start Date & Time 41 **स्}्रा** Pick Date 26 Jun 2024 Dubai Pick Time 13:30 Recreational DUBAI End Date & Time Operation Type Pick Date  $\bigcirc$ Palm Jumeirah Pick Time Add  $\rightarrow$ Select Drone Organisation Detail 26 Jun 2024 Self ক্রা 16:00 41.17 °c Documents SN98765 Other - RT777 - Foxtech 🛗 01 May 2024 1:21 🕇



Fig 4-5(f): Flight Request creation - V

- 16. Select the **Start Date** and **Start Time** of the flight request as seen above as well as the **End Date** and **End Time.** (Note: Start date and End date of flight request must be the same for Recreational pilots as they are restricted to same day flights and only in the daytime.)
- 17.Select the **Activity Purpose** and **Operation Type (VLOS)** of the flight request.
- 18.Select the desired **Drone(s)** from the list of drones registered under the pilot's profile. Up to 5 drones can be selected for a flight request. However only one drone can be operated per flight request.
- 19.Add **Location** details of flight request and add **Self** in the field for Organisation Details.
- 20. Upload required supporting **Documents** and **Acknowledge Terms & Conditions.**
- 21. Select **Next ->** once all details have been entered.
- 22.Once the flight request has been validated an **Estimated Fee** for the flight request will be provided as seen above.
- 23. Users also have the option to include additional flight requests, enabling them to submit up to 5 requests simultaneously. If the user chooses to **add more flight requests**, the user will be redirected back to the flight planning stage and should follow the same sequence of steps as described above.
- 24. Select **Next** -> to accept the estimated fee and submit flight request(s).
- 25.A message stating **"Your flight request(s) will be submitted for authorisation"** will appear as seen above in Fig 4-5(f).
- 26. Tap on **OK** to acknowledge and submit the flight request.



Fig 4-5(g): Flight Request creation - VI

- 27.A confirmation message stating the "Flight request(s) has been submitted" will appear. Pilot users will now wait for approval before proceeding further.
- 28. Once a **commercial flight request** has been approved an email requesting payment for 1000 AED will automatically be generated and sent directly to the commercial pilot. The system allows up to 10 flight requests to be created and submitted under the one flight request submission for a flat fee of 1000 AED, 1500 if a Risk Assessment has been attached. Payment status will appear as NOT PAID in the request list and dashboard (seen above) until payment has been made at which point the status will change to PAID. A pilot cannot commence operations until this payment is made. **Recreational flight requests** have no charge and by default will appear as PAID on the pilots Mobile App.

Note: Operators cannot cancel a flight request after its submission. This can be done only after it has been approved.

1:21 🕇	奈 82)	1:21 🖪	···· 🗟 82	1:22 🗲	🗢 82)
← VIEW DETAILS		← VIEW DETAILS		← VIEW DETAILS	
NEW		हन्त्र। Estimated Fee		Palm Jumeirah	
Flight Request No. 5	5379	0.00		Supporting Document	
🛗 26 Jun 2024 13:30 🕔 3	hrs 59 min 1 s	Drone View		Supporting Doc File type: pdf	ument.
Operation Type  VLOS	Altitude 299 ft	RapidX		Supporting Document_1	Ф
Recreational		🗮 Model Name	Other - RT777	I acknowledge that I will f to below conditions:	
	La Coco D	Ø Туре	Hybrid	- I will not fly the UA except for personal and pleasure use - I will not fly the UA near buildings, residential	
-isopug		🔛 Manufacturer	Foxtech	neighbourhoods, public gatherings and public or private properties - I will not fly the UA equipped with any kind of	
	The St. Fegis Dubai	# Serial No.	SN98765	projection/dropping equij recording and laser I will not fly the UA carel	
dokes ho	tel palm	🛗 01 May 2024		<ul> <li>endangering the safety of</li> <li>I will take full responsibili</li> <li>harm cause using the unm</li> </ul>	Fothers or properties lity of any damage/ nanned aircraft (UA)
Al Suligi - Prond	Fairmont The Palm	Requesting Organisation Self		<ul> <li>I will not fly the UA at nig</li> <li>I will not violate individu</li> <li>I will not violate the UAE</li> <li>Regulations as published</li> <li>www.gcaa.gov.ae</li> <li>I will fly the UA within th</li> <li>flying zones</li> </ul>	ght al's privacy Civil Aviation Law or on the GCAA website e UAE allowed
Dunchen	© Mapbox © OpenStreetM	= ^{Emirates} Dubai		Acknowledged	
				Tracker Detail	Select
CANCEL		CANCI	EL	CANCE	iL
				_	
Comments		Comments		Comments	

29. Select **Request List** to view details and status of fight request submitted

Fig 4-5(h): New Flight Request - VII

- 30. Flight Request will appear as **New** under the **All** tab by default.
- 31. Select **View Details** of the flight request in question. This will appear as **New** under the **All** or **New Tab** until it is approved by the relevant authorities. Likewise, other flight requests submitted and their status can be viewed by tapping on the respective status tabs located below the main menu options. Scroll to the right to see other status options.
- 32. It is at this point that the pilot can select and assign a tracker to the flight request if required. Scroll to the bottom of the details page and tap on **Select** located to the right of where it says **Tracker Detail.**
- 33. A list of all the trackers assigned to the user or to the user's organisation will appear.
- 34.Select the tracker to be used for the flight request and then select **Assign**.



**Note:** During the flight request creation planning & management process pilots will receive in app notifications on the status of the flight request(s) and can view them during any stage by tapping on the broadcast messages/notifications bell in the upper top right corner of the screen.



## 4.6 Request Status

The **Request List** provides users a list of all the flight requests submitted under the Pilots account, along with the payment status, and flight status of each flight request, as being either:

- Approved
- Rejected
- New
- In Progress
- Cancelled

- Completed
- Amended
- Activated
- Terminated
- Declined



Fig 4-6 (a): Flight Request List

1. Select **Request List** from the sidebar menu options or via the quick menu options at the top of the App's main screen.

2. Flight requests submitted can be found under the **All** tab or under their respective status tabs (Approved, Rejected, New, In Progress, Amended, etc).

Once the flight request is processed by the admin, the user will receive a notification on their mobile device indicating the status update (Approved, Rejected, or Amended).

### **Approved Requests:**

• If the flight request is approved, the user is authorized to conduct the flight at the scheduled time.

### **Rejected Requests:**

• If the flight request is rejected, the user will not be permitted to conduct the flight.

### **Amended Requests:**

- The Approver has the authority to modify the flight request by adjusting parameters such as altitude or radius (for circular flights) and will notify the user of any amendments.
- Upon receiving the amended request, the user must review the changes and decide to either accept or reject them.
  - Acceptance: If the user accepts the amendments, the flight request will be approved.
  - Rejection: If the user rejects the amendments, the flight request will be rejected.

To respond to an amended request:

- 1. Select the Flight Request with the status "Amended."
- 2. Click the "View Details" button.
- 3. At the bottom of the screen, choose either the "Accept" button to approve the changes or the "Decline" button to reject them.

By following these steps, the user can ensure the proper processing of their flight requests based on the given status updates.





Fig 4-6 (b): Flight Request List



# 4.7 Live Flight

Once a flight request has been approved, a notification of approval will be sent to the Pilot as seen in Fig 4-7(a) below and the pilot can now proceed to start the flight on the day and time it has been approved for by following the steps below:



Figure 4-7(a): Flight Request Status Information

- 1. Select **Request List** from the sidebar menu or the quickstart menu options to view a list of all the flight requests submitted and their status.
- Tap on the All or Approved tab and locate the flight request to be conducted.
   Status would have changed from New to Approved.
- 3. Select **View Details** for that particular flight request.
- 4. Select and assign **Tracker** if one still hasn't been assigned and is required to conduct the flight (see Fig 4-5(h), section 4.10 and section 4.11)
- 5. A message that the tracker has been successfully assigned will appear.





Figure 4-7(b): Start Flight using Tracker

- 6. Tap **Start Flight** located at the bottom of the page when it is time to start the flight. (NB. The option to start the flight will only appear once the Approver(s) has approved the flight and when it is *actually* time to start the flight).
- 7. The system will prompt the pilot to select one of the following three options to commence and start tracking the flight( See Fig 4-7(b) above):
  - DJI or
  - Tracker
  - Geofence

See below for the Tracker and DJI workflow.



### 4.7.1 Tracking Device



Figure 4-7(c): Flight Request in Progress

- 1. Select **Tracker** to commence the flight (see Fig 4-7(b)).
- 2. The pilot will now receive a notification that the **"Drone flight request is now in progress"** as seen above in Fig 4-7(c).
- 3. Zoom in to the screen to view the flight track (seen in red) more accurately.



Fig 4-7(d): Boundary Breach and Comms Panel

- 4. During the flight, users can receive notifications and alerts. These will flash across the top of the screen and can be viewed in the **Comms Panel** as well.
- 5. Tap on the **Chat button** in the top right corner of the Live flight page to display the comms panel as seen above.
- 6. Pilots can accordingly respond to any instructions received from the authorities via text or audio messages. For example, any breach of boundary outside the authorised flight path will generate an alert that the pilot is outside the authorised airspace(See Fig 4-7(d)) above).
- Tap the orange Traffic icon on the right side of the map interface to display any manned and unmanned traffic within 5km of the operation zone.





Fig 4-7(e): Completion of Flight Request

- 8. Once the flight request has completely ended or if the pilot decides to temporarily stop the flight (e.g this can be in order to report an incident) user can tap on the **back arrow** in the upper left corner of the screen. The system will prompt the user via a pop-up message to "Stop tracking the flight".
- Select Yes to stop tracking flight and be redirected back to the details page.
- 10. Tap **Complete** to conclude the flight operation or **Start Flight** to resume if flight was temporarily stopped.
- 11. Select **Yes** to confirm completion of flight request.
- 12. Pilot will receive an in app notification that the "**Drone flight request is** completed".

### 4.7.2 DJI - Mobile SDK



Fig 4-7(f): Start Flight using DJI

- Tap Start Flight located at the bottom of the page when it is time to start the flight. (NB. The option to start the flight will only appear once the Approver(s) has approved the flight and when it is *actually* time to the start time).
- 2. The system will prompt the user to select one of the following two options to commence and start tracking the flight:
  - DJI or
  - Tracker
- 3. Select **DJI** to commence the flight.
- 4. The screen will now navigate to the **DJI Live flight** screen as seen below.



Fig 4-7(g): Flight Request using DJI in progress

- The pilot will receive a notification that the "Drone flight request is now in progress"
- 6. Select the inset image in the lower right corner of the main screen to visualise the flight in full screen.
- 7. Zoom in for a more accurate picture of the flight operation.
- Click on the traffic icon in the top right corner to view live traffic within 5km of the drone operation zone. (see Fig 4-7(h)).
- 9. To the left of the screen are 2 control buttons which automatically control the take off and landing of the drone, eliminating the need for the pilot to manually take off and land the drone using the remote control. The control buttons are as follows:
  - The first one is the Take Off/Land button, and
  - The second is the **Return to Home (H)** button





Fig 4-7(h): Flight request (DJI) in progress (full screen)

10. Tap the **Take Off/Land** button to lift the drone off the ground and commence the flight. This manoeuvre is indicated by the upward facing arrow. Once flight has commenced the arrow will revert to pointing down providing the pilot the option to automatically land the drone when required, such as in an emergency or when the flight has been completed.



Fig 4-7(i): Return to Home (RTH)

- 11. The **Return to Home** (**H**) button when selected during the flight, allows the pilot to automatically return the drone to the location where it originally took off from. A message stating the **RTH Altitude** (Return to Home) will pop up. This is the **maximum allowed altitude** that the drone can fly at when returning home and is the altitude that was selected during the creation of the flight request.
- 12. Tap **Start** when required to initiate the return to home manoeuvre.



salat 🗢	12:43 PM	<b>4</b> 45
📄 chat		>
	01 Jul 2024	
dmin		
new flight re Ministry Of	equest no. 5411 has bee Interior Step 1 for autho	n submitted risation.
ں 3:14:19	ىلة الجديدة برقم 5411 للترخيص	تم تقديم طلب الرح
dmin		
new flight re GCAA Airsp uthorisation.	equest no. 5411 has beer bace Approval - Recreation	n submitted onal for
ے 3:14:20	<del>ى</del> لة الجديدة برقم 5411 للترخيص	تم تقديم طلب الرح
our drone flig dministrator.	ght request is approved t	by the
<b>قبل المسؤول</b> 4:53:16	طلب رحلة الطائرة بدون طيار من	تمت الموافقة على ،
dmin		
our flight aut the expirati ں الرحلة	horisation has been Con: on of the flight authorisa ر رحلتك بسبب انتهاء وقت ترخيم	npleted due ition time. لقد اكتمل ترخيص
ype here		

Fig 4-7(j): Comms Panel

- 13. During the flight, users can visualise the track of the drone( seen in red in Fig 4-7(h)), and receive notifications and alerts that will flash across the top of the screen. The notifications can also be viewed in the **Comms Panel** as seen in Fig 4-7(j).
- 14. Tap on the **Chat button** on the left hand side of the Live DJI flight page to display the comms panel.



Fig 4-7(k): Boundary Breach (DJI Flight)

- 15. Pilots can accordingly respond to any instructions received from the authorities via text or audio messages.
- 16. Any breach of boundary outside the authorised flight path will turn the drone red and generate an alert that the pilot is outside the authorised airspace. See Fig 4-7(k) above.



Flight 4-7(l): Completion of Flight Request (DJI)

17. Tap on the **back arrow** in the upper left corner of the screen once the

flight request has ended or if required to temporarily stop the flight (e.g this can be in order to report an incident). The system will prompt the user via a pop-up message to "**Stop your current flight**".

- 18. Select **Yes** to stop the flight and be redirected back to View details page.
- 19. Tap **Complete** to conclude the flight operation or **Start Flight** to resume if flight was temporarily stopped.
- 20. Select **Yes** to confirm completion of flight request.
- 21. Pilot will receive an in app notification that the "**Drone flight request is** completed".


## 4.8 Flight Replay

This feature allows the pilot to replay the drone flight operation once the flight has been completed. The **Flight Replay** menu option can be accessed via the sidebar menu options or from the quick menu options at the top of the main screen.



Figure 4-8(a): Drone Flight Replay

- Select Flight Replay from the sidebar menu or the quick menu options to be navigated to the list of flight requests conducted under the users profile.
- 2. Select **Replay** to play back the drone flight telemetry of the flight request in question.
- 3. Tap on **Play** to replay the flight. Default controls to fast forward, rewind and pause are available on the flight replay as seen in Fig 4-8(a) above.



4:23 🗊 🍕 🛤	ې
😑 chat	×
Administrator	
High Alert: Boundary breached. Please s designated flight plan 16:50:55	tay within
Administrator	
Critical Alert: Boundary breached. Please s designated flight plan 16:50:59	tay within
Administrator	
Critical Alert: Boundary breached. Please s designated flight plan 16:50:59	tay within
Administrator	
Critical Alert: Boundary breached. Please si designated flight plan	tay within
= 0	<1

Fig 4-8(b): Drone Flight Replay Comms

- 4. Select the **Comms button** in the top right corner of the Flight Replay page to view the comms panel which displays any communication that took place, via text or audio, between the pilot and relevant authorities during the flight operation.
- 5. Tap on the **orange arrow** in the top left corner to navigate back to the main Flight Request page of the App.



## 4.9 Profile

The Profile section is where users can easily view, edit and update their personal details that were entered upon initial sign-up. This information includes the user's name, photo, mobile number, nationality, passport number and Emirates ID. Users can delete their profile and update their password from here as well.

9:47	1	비 주 97	2:39 <b>4</b> . =	* 0	?© I ₪20% Ĵ	2:56 (	M	¥ 0	?: 23% ↓
6	Taha Yahya	×	The second se	Flight Replay	O ☐ Profile	고 내 Dashboard	Req. List	Flight Replay	O= C
	Dashboard						<u></u>	·()	
	Organisation Details	=				First Name			
	Request List	Dashboard Reg				Last Name			
Ę	Flight Replay	:Ö: 20.0'		l e		Ahmed			
o⊑ C	Profile		First Name			Mobile Nur	nber		
00	Team	<u>~</u>	Sabeena			+971544	143023		
(		Total Flights	Last Name			Country Of	Residence		
Ŧ	My Drones	o	Ahmed			United Ar	ab Emirates		
	Contact us	My Drones	Mobile Number			Notionality			
	Incidents	1 Drc	+971544143023			Australia			
ŝ	Settings		Email Address			Passport N	lumber		
		Creat	sabeena@astrautm.c	com		Deadler	70		
€	Logout		EDIT	De	lete	CAN	CEL	UPI	DATE
			Ξ	0 4		Ξ	Ξ (		3

Fig 4-9(a): Profile Edit

- 1. Select **Profile** menu option from the sidebar menu panel or from the quick menu options located at the top of the App's main screen.
- 2. Select the **Edit** tab at bottom of the screen to edit details.
- 3. Tap **Update** when done.
- 4. Users will receive a notification that **Profile was updated successfully.**
- 5. Any changes must go for back for approval by the Admin.
- 6. Select **Delete** to delete the user profile.



### 4.10 My Drones

This feature allows the pilot (Recreational) to register a drone under the pilots account. The Admin is also able to register a drone for a Pilot, under the Organisation that the Pilot has been assigned to. (See section 4.13)



Figure 4-10(a): Drone Registration

- Select My Drones from the menu options or the dashboard to be navigated to the My Drones page which lists all the drones registered under the pilot's profile.
- Tap Add or Add New Drone at the bottom of the screen(User can alternatively tap Add from the Dashboard).



08:42 <b>1</b>	🗢 🔲 08:42 🕇		🗢 💷	08:49	9 🕈	🗢 🗖
← Add New Drone	=		Ģ	÷	My Drones	
Drone Weight(KG) 5	Dashboard	Req List Flight Replay	Profile		RapidX	(;)
Drone Name RapidX	You will be able profile has been Kindly add at lei- can be submitte	to submit flight request or approved. ast one drone to your prof	nce your user ile so that it		Model Name	Other - RT777
Drone Image						Hybrid
File type: jpeg & jpg	- <u>Ö</u> : 34.	0 °C Pressure: • Wind: 5.0 r	1004.0 hPa m/s	£		Foxtech
doc638537640470781397.jpg	View.		Completed	#		SN98765
Drone Serial Number Image	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	\$~ <b>\$</b> _	0	#		5.0
File type: jpeg & jpg		27	Approved			Not Supported
	Total Flights		Rejected	#		N/A
Contormity from MOIAI	My Drones	\$7 <b>*</b>	0 View All →	1	01 May 2024	
Loc638537641369458346 pdf	View	1 Drones	Add	Total Tra You will with you	ocker To Purchase:1 need to purchase a tr r sales manager at El	acker by getting in touch isalat e&
ADD	CR	REATE FLIGHT REQUES	г		ADD NEW I	DRONE

Figure 4-10(b): Drone Registration

- 3. Enter the following details of the Drone as seen above in Fig 4-10 a,b:
  - a. Manufacturer
  - b. Drone Type
  - c. Drone Model
  - d. Commission Date
  - e. Drone Serial Number
  - f. Drone Weight (kg) (Note: Max weight allowed when registering a drone for recreational operations is 5kg. Drone weight for commercial operations is unlimited, however, a risk assessment must be uploaded when registering a drone that weighs more than 25kg).
  - g. Drone Name
  - h. Upload Relevant Documents Drone Image, Drone Serial No. Letter of Conformity from MOIAT, Risk Assessment for drones weighing more than 25kg - this is for commercial operations only).
- 4. Click **Add** to register the drone.

- 5. User will receive a notification that the **"Drone has been added successfully"** and the drone will now appear as **New** in the My Drones section of the pilots account until approved by the SA or Admin.
- 6. Click **My Drones** or **View All** to view drone status (see Fig 4-10(b) above).
- 7. The drone's status will change from **New** to **Approved** once the drone has been approved by the SA or Admin.

08:49 <b>1</b>	🗢 🗖	5	5:19 🕼 🛤 🛦	# 🗟 🖬 🗄 20%	09:	16 🕈	🗢 🗔
← My Drones		<- 1	Ay Drones		÷	My Drones	
RapidX	: Other - RT777		PPROVED	NOT PAID		APPROVED	
🕑 Туре	Hybrid	=	Model Name	Mavic 3 Pro		Model Name	X DELETEr - RT777
Manufacturer	Foxtech	0	Туре	Multirotor	0		Hybrid
# Serial No.	SN98765	£	Manufacturer	DJI	····		Foxtech
# Drone Weight	5.0	#	) Serial No.	99877		Serial No	SN98765
# SDK Supported	Not Supported	#	) Drone Weight	3	 (#	Drone Weight	5.0
# Tracker	N/A	#	) SDK Supported	Not supported	(# 		Not Supported
🛗 01 May 2024		(#	) Tracker	N/A	# 		
		Ē	06 Sep 2024		#	Iracker	N/A
Total Tracker To Purchase:1 You will need to purchase a track with your sales manager at Etisa	ker by getting in touch lat e&	You will nee	Total trackers to p	DURCHASE : 4 ch with your sales manager at Etisalat e&	Total To You wil with yo	acker To Purchase:1 l need to purchase a ur sales manager at	tracker by getting in touch Etisalat e&
ADD NEW DR	DNE					ADD NEW	/ DRONE

Figure 4-10(c): View/Delete Drone Details

- 8. Once Drone has been approved by the Admin, the status of drone will change from New to Approved and will be reflected in the drone details as seen above.
- 9. Once approved a payment request for the drone's registration will be sent to the operator via email. A payment of 200 AED is required for a drone being used for recreational purposes, renewed every 2 years. Whereas drones being used for commercial applications have a charge which varies according to the weight of the drone. See Section 5.13 for further details on price schedule.



Once payment has been processed payment status of drone will change from **NOT PAID** to **PAID** as seen above in Fig 4-10(c).

- 10.A note indicating the number of trackers to be purchased from e& will be highlighted at the bottom of the page. This directly corresponds to the number of drones registered under the pilots profile. **Note:** It is mandatory for a drone to be retrofitted with a tracker.
- 11. To view the Drone details as well as details of any other drones that may be registered under the Pilot's Account select **My Drones** from the menu options or **View All** in the Dashboard

As mentioned above, multiple drones can be registered under the Pilots account by following the above mentioned steps. All the registered drones assigned to the Pilot will be visible in the **My Drone** Section of the app as shown in Figure 6-10(b) and it is from here a drone is selected when creating a flight request.

- 12. To view drone details or to delete a drone from the profile select My Drones from the sidebar menu options or tap on View All from the My Drones section on the dashboard.
- 1. Tap on the **three dots** button to the right of the drone name as seen above in Fig 4-10(c). User will be provided with two options:
  - a. Details
  - b. Delete
- 11. Tap on **Details** to view the details of the drone.
- 12. Tap on **Delete** to delete the drone from the user profile.



## 4.11 Incidents

This functionality enables users to report any incidents that occurred during the flight or at the completion of the flight.



Fig 4-11(a): Incident Reporting

- To report any incident(s) during the flight operation, tap on the orange arrow in the upper top left hand corner of the screen as seen in Fig 4-11(a) above. (Incidents can be reported at the completion of the flight request as well).
- 2. Select Yes in response to the pop up message to "Stop Flight Tracking".
- 3. Select **Report Incident** tab, and complete the required details of the incident in the form provided, such as the root cause, and description of what happened during the flight, as well as providing any supporting documents.



Fig 4-11(b): Incident Report

- 4. Click **Submit Report** when completed.
- 5. A notification stating " **Incident submitted successfully "** will appear, at which point the pilot has the option to resume flight again by selecting **Start Flight** at the bottom of the screen.
- 6. Flight can be paused to report another incident following the same steps above
- 7. Each incident reported during the flight(or upon completion of the flight) will have a separate **Flight ID** assigned as seen in Fig 4-11(b) above, and can be viewed by selecting **Incident Detail** or upon completion of the flight by selecting **Incidents** from the sidebar menu options.
- 8. Incident details can also be viewed via the **Request List** menu option.
- 9. Select **View Details** of the particular flight request in question, during which the incident occurred and then select **Incident Detail.**



## 4.12 Settings

This feature allows the users to change the language between the primary and secondary languages set by the SA in the customization panel.



Fig 4-12(a): Settings - Language

- 1. Select **Settings** from the sidebar menu options.
- 2. Select the preferred language from the dropdown menu displayed in the Settings page.
- 3. Users can select **English** or the **Arabic** (Secondary) language.





Fig 4-12(b): English and Arabic Language

# 4.13 Emergency and Termination

AstraUTM provides mechanisms to address unexpected scenarios during drone operations. This section outlines the emergency response and termination of drone activities, ensuring a straightforward approach to maintaining safety in the airspace and effective handling of critical circumstances.



### 4.13.1 Emergency Declaration

Fig 4.13(a): Start Emergency Declaration

In the event of an emergency being declared by the Super Admin, all users in the system, both Authority and Operator, will receive a notification about it.

- Click the **Emergency** button in the upper right hand corner of the screen to declare the Emergency.
- 2. Tap on "**Start Emergency**" to proceed with notifying Operator users.



Fig 4.13(b): Emergency Declaration Notification for Landing and Resuming Flights

3. Operator Users will see a distinct red banner across every screen of the mobile application. This banner not only signals the presence of an emergency but also provides the specific reason for its declaration. It's a constant reminder, ensuring all users are consistently informed. Additionally, the banner remains in place on the application screens until the Super Admin confirms the resolution of the situation and normal operations can resume.





Fig 4-13(c): Stop Emergency

- 1. To end the emergency, re-click on the **Emergency** button in the upper top right corner.
- 2. Tap on **"Stop Emergency"** to end emergency declaration.

#### 4.13.2 Termination

The Approver User has the authority to end a specific flight, while the Administrator can halt flights within a designated area. If a flight is terminated, operators are informed, their flight status updated to "Terminated", and a full-screen notification appears. This notification requires the operator's acknowledgement before further use of the App. Notifications of termination are also relayed through the communication module, where operator acknowledgements are recorded.



# 5.0 Operator Role - Web

The following section outlines the UTM workflow sequence for Operators via the Web (See Section 4 for UTM access using the Mobile App). There are two types of Operators: the Organisation Manager and Pilot (Recreational or Commercial). Both have similar access to the system, but the Organisation Manager has additional features which enable them to register the organisation's pilots (since commercial pilots cannot register themselves), as well as manage the organisation's details.

Often, legal entities other than individuals (e.g. Hobbyists or Recreational drone pilots), wish to use drones for commercial or official purposes. For this to occur the legal entity or organisation must first be registered with the UTM. This is done by the Organisation Manager who is assigned to manage the drones and pilots (Commercial) that the organisation is legally responsible for. The responsibility of managing and maintaining the registry of pilots, drones, flight requests as well as the coordination with Authorities and Approvers, is often assigned to a single user but is not a restriction - multiple users can be designated as well.

### 5.1 Registration

For initial access to the UTM Web application all Operators must first sign up for an account using their **UAE PASS**. (See Section 4 for sign up using Mobile App). Recreational Pilots can register their account directly, while Commercial Pilots must contact their respective Organisation Manager for account creation (See Section 5.6).



### 5.1.1 Recreational Pilots

And and a state of the state of	عرب Execuse	
	The Al-ADD and Al-ADD	
	Username International Actions	
	Password A Shariah	
	Forgot Password?	
Mission Planning	Sign in Or	
Get realtime situational awareness to create effective missions for your drone operations.	Sign in with UAE PASS     United Arab     Emicrosoft	
	Don't have a Recreational account? Signua	

Figure 5-1(a): AstraUTM Web Sign-In Screen

- 1. Open the URL <a href="https://drones.gov.ae">https://drones.gov.ae</a>
- 2. Click **Sign up** at the bottom of the screen to create a new **Recreational Account.**
- 3. Users will be directed to sign up with their **UAE PASS** as seen below.



N-II-AR (y)			EN	GLISH	عربي
	Recreational Account	×			
	🚳 Sign up with UAE PASS				
	Already have an account? Son in				

Figure 5-1(b): Sign-up with UAE PASS- Recreational

4. Click **Sign-up with UAE PASS** to be directed to the UAE PASS login page.

Login to UAE PASS	
Emirates ID, email, or phone eg. 97150000000	
Remember me	
Login	
Don't have UAEPASS account? Create new account	
Recover your account	
86	
Home About Support FAQ Kiosk Locations Se	vice Provider

Figure 5-1(c): Login to UAE PASS page

5. User must login through UAE PASS using their Emirates Id, email, or mobile number. This will trigger an authorisation request to their UAE PASS device(UAE PASS App). For users who don't have a UAE PASS, a UAE PASS account must be created before registering on UTM. 6. Once users have been authorised by the UAE PASS App using their pre-configured PIN or fingerprint or Face ID, users will be redirected back to the UTM system to complete the registration form as seen below in Fig 5-1(d).

		عربي ENGLISH
Create a Recreational Accoun	t	
Country of Residence *		
United Arab Emirates 🗸 🗸		
Applicant Information		
First Name *	Last Name *	
Geo	Joy	
Full Name (Arabic) *		
Family Name (Arabic)	Alias (Arabic) *	
Date of Birth *	Place Of Birth	
Enter your Date of Birth		
Gender*	Nationality *	
Identification Information		
Passport No 6	Passport Place Of Issue	
Passport Issue Date*	Passport Expiry Date *	
Enter your Passport Issue Date	Enter your Passport Expiry Date	

Figure 5-1(d): Registration Forms - Recreational Pilot

- If users have been verified by the UAE PASS portal the forms will auto populate with relevant information of the user, which includes their Emirates ID.
- 8. If the user is not verified they will not see their Emirates ID.

Note: Commercial/Government pilots should contact their respective Organisation Manager for account creation which is done via the Web or Mobile Application.

- 9. Enter the remaining information and attach any supporting documents.
- 10. Agree to **Terms and Conditions and Privacy Policy** , then click **Continue**.
- 11. Upon completing the forms the system will auto-log the user into the UTM Dashboard as seen below. User must then wait to be approved, as well as register and gain approval for at least 1 drone before proceeding to create flight requests.( Section 5.7 - Drones) (Note: Pilot and drone registration



payments are required to be processed once pilot user and drone have been approved).



Figure 5-1(e): UTM System Dashboard - Recreational Pilot

### 5.1.2 Commercial Organisation



#### Figure 5-1(f): AstraUTM Web Sign-In Screen

- Open the URL <u>https://drones.gov.ae</u>. Commercial pilots can access UTM once the organisation they will operate under has been successfully registered and an account has been created for the pilot (see Section 5.6). This process is managed by the Organisation Manager.
- 2. Click **Register Here** at the bottom of the screen to create a new **Commercial Organisation Account**.
- 3. User will be directed to register the Organisation with their **UAE PASS** as seen below.

	NGLISH	عربي
Commercial Account ×		
ign up with UAE PASS		
Already have an account? Sign in		

Figure 5-1(g): SIgn-up with UAE PASS - Commercial Organisation Account

4. Click **Sign up with UAE PASS** to be directed to the **UAE PASS Login** page.



	(	
	Login to UAE PASS	
	Emirates ID, email, or phone eg. 971500000000	
	Remember me     Login	
	Don't have UAEPASS account? Create new account Recover your account	
(MS) Home	About Support FAQ Kiosk Locations Se	rvice Provider

Figure 5-1(h): UAE Pass Log-in Page

- 5. User must Sign-in through UAE PASS using their Emirates Id, email, or mobile number. This will trigger an authorisation request to their UAE PASS device(UAE PASS App). For users who don't have a UAE PASS, a UAE PASS account must be created before registering on UTM.
- 6. Once users have been authorised by the UAE PASS App using their pre-configured PIN, fingerprint or Face ID, users will be redirected back to UTM to complete the registration form as seen below in Fig 5-1(i).

GENERAL CIVIL ANATION AUTHORITY			ENGLISH	عربي
	Register Organisation			
	riogioter organioation			
	Organisation Details			
	Topic/Purpose *	Owner or Representative Name *		
	Commercial	Company Name *		
	Private Business			
	Government User	Trade License Number *		
	Establishment Card No. *	Trade License Expiry *		
	UOA Expiry Date From GCAA *	Company Registered Emirate		
	Address *			



Organisation Attachments (Mandatory)		
Unmanned Aircraft Operator Authorisation From		
GCAA File Type: pdf	Company Owner Passport * File Type: pdf	
Company Owner Emirates ID * File Type: pdf	Upload Trade License * File Type: pdf	
Upload Establishment Card *     File Type: pdf	Upload Authorised Personnel Supporting Document	
Operator Information (Mandatory)		
First Name *	Last Name *	
Sabeena	Ahmed	
5 Full Name (Arabic)	Samily Name (Ara	
* Alias (Arabic)	Date of Birth *	
Place Of Birth *	Gender *	
	~	
Nationality *		
Identification Information (Mandatery)		
	Dacenort lecua Data I	
Desenant Josep Place	Desenset Evolution Data	
Passport Issue Place	Passport Expiry Date	
Emirates ID No. *	Emirates ID Expiry Date *	
Account Information (Mandatory)		
Mobile *	Phone Number	
<b>1</b> +971 54 414 3023	<b>▶</b> • +971	
Email *		
sabeena@astrautm.com		
Declaration Of Information (Mandatory)		
State *	City *	
Attachments (Mandatory)		
▶ +971 54 414 3023	▶ +971 ▶	
Email *		
sabeena@astrautm.com		
Declaration Of Information (Mandatory)		
State *	City *	
Attachments (Mandatory)		
Passport  Passport File Type: pdf	Emirates ID     File Type: pdf	
UAE Visa ★	CT Drone Operator Photograph *	
File Type: pdf	File Type: jpeg. jpg	
I agree to the Terms and Conditions and Privacy Policy		
SUBMIT		
Already have an account? Login here		

Figure 5-1(i): Registration - Commercial Organisation



- 7. If users have been verified by the UAE PASS Portal the forms will auto populate with user's relevant information which includes their **Emirates ID**.
- 8. If the user is not verified they will not see their Emirates ID.
- Select the type of organisation to be registered from the drop down menu labelled Topic/Purpose. Select either:
  - a. Commercial
  - b. Private Business or
  - c. Government User
- 10. Fill in the remaining required information and upload supporting documents.
- 11. Agree to Terms and Conditions and Privacy Policy , then click Submit.
- 12. The Organisation Manager will be notified by email confirming the request for registration has been received and is now under review.
- 13. Once organisation and user have been approved by the SA, user will be notified that they can now sign in with UAE PASS (see Section 5.2 and 5.3).

Team UTM <astra-noreply@astrautm.com></astra-noreply@astrautm.com>	1:36 PM (O minutes ago)	☆	٢	¢	:
to me Your account has been approved, you can now sign in with UAE PASS					
← Reply → Forward ③					

Figure 5-1(j): Approval email notification

#### Commercial/Government Pilots



Once the organisation has been approved and successfully registered into the system the organisation manager can proceed to create an account for the pilots within that organisation. (See Section 5.6 for account creation process).

- 1. Select **Team** from the menu options to create a commercial pilot's account.
- 2. Enter the required details of the pilot and click **Submit**.
- 3. An automatically generated email will be sent prompting the pilot to link their newly created account with UAE PASS, whilst at the same time the pilot's details will be sent to the Admin for approval.
- 4. has been approved by the Admin, An email notifying the pilot of successful UTM account creation will be automatically generated prompting the pilot to link the account with UAE PASS as seen below in Fig 5-1(k).



Figure 5-1(k): Account Creation email - Commercial Pilot

5. Pilot clicks on click here in email, to be directed to the Login page for UAE PASS where they will login using their Emirates Id, email, or mobile number. This will trigger an authorisation request to their UAE PASS device(UAE PASS App). For users who don't have a UAE PASS, a UAE PASS account must be created before registering on UTM. 6. Once users have been authorised by the UAE PASS App using their pre-configured PIN or fingerprint or Face ID, users will be directed straight to the commercial pilot's UTM dashboard, the main landing page of the system.

GENERAL CHIL AVAILON AUTHORITY	11 June 2024	<b>↓</b>
⊡     Dashboard       ☺     Drone Flight Requests     ✓       ☆     Drone Flight History     ✓       ★     Drones     ✓		
■ Insident Reporting ∨	Abu Dhal 2 Chu Dhal 2 Chu Chu 2 Chu Chu 2	AAbar Luii iii Swatan Oo Case Co Co
Sabeens Ahrned sebeens@astrautru.com Copyright 2 0221 Astraut/NA.48 Rights (Saserred).	Al Jrab Ugal Al Rein Al Rein A	

Figure 5-1(l): UTM System Dashboard - Commercial Pilot



### 5.2 Sign-in with UAE PASS

GLINEARL CIVIL ANALTON AUTHORITY		عرب Ktatab دمه
	Welcome to UAE Drones For ratif users, sign in hirrs: Operators, login with UAE PUSS Username	
	Enter your usemame / email address Password Enter your password	
	Forgot Password?	
Mission Planning Get realtime situational awareness to create effective missions for your drone operations.	or	ss United Arab
• • • • •	Don't have a Recreational account? Signue	

Figure 5-2(a): UTM Web Sign-in with UAE PASS - Operators (Pilots and Organisation Manager)

- 1. Open the URL <a href="https://drones.gov.ae">https://drones.gov.ae</a>
- 2. Operator users can Sign in with UAE PASS once they have an account

	<u></u>				
	Login to UAE PASS				
	Emirates ID, email, or phone eg. 971500000000				
	Remember me				
	Login				
	Don't have UAEPASS account? Create new account				
Recover your account					
N6					
Home	About Support FAQ Kiosk Locations Se	rvice Provider			

Figure 5-2(b): UAE Pass Log-in Page

3. Enter either Emirates ID, email or phone number and click Login.

4. Once an operator is authorised by the UAE PASS App using their pre-configured PIN or fingerprint or Face ID, the system will auto log the operator into the UTM dashboard, the main landing page of the system as seen below.



Figure 5-2(c): UTM Operator Dashboard- Organisation Manager

## 5.3 UTM Home Dashboard & Navigation

The UTM Home Dashboard is the main page of the application where you can see an overview of the airspace and UTM features and functions that assist the Operators in navigating the system.



Figure 5-3(a): UTM Organisation Manager Dashboard

The **Dashboard** contains a centred map displaying the region's configured airspace with its various colour coded airspace zones (eg Fly zone, No Fly zone, Prohibited zone, Restricted zone, Temporary Danger Zone etc) and live air traffic (manned & unmanned) in the region.

Map Controls are available on the right , along the top and bottom, and right side of the dashboard. On the left are the Menu options, at the top is the Date Selection Tool, and Timeline Bar can be found along the bottom.



#### 5.3.1 Central Map Display

Once logged into the system, a map will appear in the centre of the UTM Home Dashboard providing a 2D representation of the geographical area.



Figure 5-3(b): UTM Dashboard - Mapview with Airspace Zone Information

- 1. Click and drag the **Map** to move to the desired location.
- 2. Click on the maximise **icon** on top right to view the map in full screen.
- 3. Move the cursor (trackpad) with two fingers to either the left or right or pinch it to zoom in or out.
- Click on any coloured Airspace zones to obtain more information on a particular zone (such as type of zone, start/end time of zone, upper/ lower limits of zone).
- 5. Click on the **Manned Aviation Traffic icon** to bring up the latest reported data regarding its identity, latitude, longitude and altitude.





Figure 5-3(c): UTM Dashboard - Live Drone Flight

6. Click on **Drone icons** to display a particular drone's flight details. The pop-up will display the comms module which contains all communication that took place, via text and/or voice messages, between the administrator and drone pilot during the flight. This includes any alerts and notifications generated by the system in case there is an altitude/boundary breach.



Figure 5-3(d): Map Elements Visualisation - I



Figure 5-3(d): Map Elements Visualisation - II

To the right of the map interface are the Map Display Control Options which allow the user some flexibility on how the map is presented and which elements are displayed or turned-off.

- 1. Click the Map Elements Display button to enable the following functions:
  - a. Toggle ON/OFF the Map Elements Display button to visualise the manned and unmanned air traffic data. The User can view the air traffic

at different playback speeds (only available when viewing non-current data). The available options are normal speed **(1x)**, twice normal **(2x)** or 4 times normal **(4x)**.

- b. Toggle ON/OFF the METAR button to view the Weather data on the map. Clicking the weather station icon on the map allows the Administrator to see the current Meteorological Aviation Report (METAR) and/or TAF (if available) information. This report provides the users with critical, time relevant weather information for a particular station as seen in the image below.
- c. Toggle ON/OFF the whole airspace and individual airspace zones
- d. Click + /- button to zoom in and out of map
- e. Click the **Map Style Toggle** button to toggle between Dark & Satellite mode (See Fig 5-3(d)).



#### 5.3.2 UTM Menu Options

Menu on the left allows operators to navigate and access the various features in the UTM system. Access to these menu options is as per roles and user profiles. The main options available are mentioned below. Further down is the option to **Account** and **Log out.** 



Figure 5-3(e): Organisation Manager Menu Options

The menu options for the Organisation Manager are as follow:



- a. Dashboard
- b. Drone Flight Requests
- c. Drone Flight History
- d. Operator Users
- e. Drones
- f. Incident Reporting

Note: Dashboard menu options will be restricted depending on role based access. For eg Organisation Managers have access to the "Operator Users" feature, whereas individual recreational and commercial pilots don't. Reason for this is that Organisation Managers, who can also be operators are responsible for managing the pilots, drones and flight requests for that particular organisation.



#### 5.3.3 Date Selector & Drone Flight Summary Status

At the top of the dashboard the user has access to the **Date Selector** tool which allows the user to view the total number of drone flight requests, their status and the airspace zones for that particular day. On login, the system defaults to the current date. However this tool can be used to temporarily navigate to a specific date (i.e. single day of the month of the year) whereby the dashboard updates automatically to visually depict and display the drone activity for that date. This date can be selected in the past (to view historic activity) or in the future (to view planned activity).



Figure 5-3(f): Date & Drone Flight Summary Status

The status of the drone flight requests for that day are displayed to the right of the date selector and are colour-coded and summarised by the number of flights within that status. The different types of flight requests are distinguished by the colour coded bar along the bottom of the dashboard and include those that are or were and will be in progress, as well as any new or approved, amended, rejected, cancelled, completed and terminated flights for that particular day.



Figure 5-3(g): Date Selector

1. Click the Date Selector -> Date/Month/Year



Fig 5-3(h): Flight Request Details

2. Click on a flight request status to enable/disable the visualisation of the drone flight activity for that flight request. See Fig 5-3(h) above).


- 3. Click on the flight request to view pop up details of that flight such as weather on the day, pilot name, drone name, type of flight, start/end time etc and the comms module.
- 4. Click on **View details** link for further details on that particular flight request.



Fig 5-3(i): Flight Request Details

5. The users will also be able to see the duration of that flight, reflected in the timeline bar at the bottom of the dashboard.



### 5.3.4 Daily Timeline Bar & Legend

At the bottom of the dashboard is the timeline bar that displays a timeline slider allowing the user to select a particular time of day. (in Local Time Coordinated - LTC). This allows the user to view airspace activity either on the current day or historically (if selected in the past) or that which is planned for at a later date ( if selected in the future).



Figure 5-3(j): Timeline Bar & Legend

The **Legend** provides a quick reference to the colour codes of the various flight request Status as depicted in the Map view.

The **Timeline Button** control allows the Users to hide or show the Timeline and Legend - which can aid in freeing up more space on the Map View.

The **Reset Switch** on the right side - allows the users to quickly return to the current time on the Timeline Bar with a single click.



### 5.4 Drone Flight Requests

This feature allows Organisation Managers to view and monitor drone flight requests created by pilots registered under their organisation. Organisation managers can also create flight requests for these pilots.

	ATTENT CAR WALLAND ATTENT		Cashboard / Drone Flight Re	equest / Flight Request	List					
₽₹ (	Deshboard		Q Search						EXPORT	REFRESH
ês X¦≬ €	Drone Flight History Operator Users		D	ACTIVITY PURPOSE	PILOT NAME	START DATE TIME	END DATE TIME	STATUS		
×	Drones		5304	Aerial Filming	manager aqsa	03 Jun 2024 17:28:00	03 Jun 2024 18:29:00	NEW		<u>o</u> 🖻
(A)	Incident Reporting		5282	Aerial Filming	P1 flights	29 May 2024 14:52:00	29 May 2024 18:50:00	REJECTED		<b>@</b> 🖻
			5280	Aerial Filming	P1 flights	29 May 2024 13:46:00	29 May 2024 14:39:00	TERMINATED		<b>@</b> 🖻
			5279	Aerial Filming	P1 flights	30 May 2024 13:35:00	30 May 2024 14:35:00	REJECTED		<u>o</u> 🖻
			5278	Construction Monitoring	P1 flights	29 May 2024 13:40:00	29 May 2024 15:36:00	CANCELLED		<b>o</b> 🖻
			5277	Aerial Filming	manager aqsa	30 May 2024 13:32:00	30 May 2024 13:40:00	CANCELLED		<b>o</b> 🖻
	bhargav tank		5276	Construction Monitoring	P1 flights	29 May 2024 13:30:00	29 May 2024 15:23:00	CANCELLED		<b>o</b> 🖻
÷	Account E	AR								
Copyrigh			1 • 7 of 39						2 3 4	5 6 > »

Figure 5-4(a): Drone Flight Request List

### 5.4.1 Viewing Flight Requests

- Click on Drone Flight Requests -> List All from the menu and sub menu options to view a list of all flight requests registered within the organisation and their status, being either New, In Progress, Completed or Terminated.
- 2. Click the **Export** button in the top right hand corner of the page to export this Flight Request list data if required.
- 3. Other details of the flight request that the User is able to view are as follows
  - a. Flight ID c. Pilot Name
  - b. Activity Purpose d. Start/End Date Time



ang		← Desthoord / Flight Request List / Flight Request Detail : 5365			START FLIGHT STOP
Tashboard		A. Tangtuan	IN PROSRESS		
😌 Drone Flight Requ	ests 🗸		Aerial Filming 25 June 2024 15:30		
The Drone Flight Histor			A Pilot Name	C Email	C Mobile
Operator Users			bhargav tank	bhargav@astrautm.com	+971557663122
3C Drones			Organisation bhargev games		
incident Reportin		Al Webel Island North AL SAMMAN			
		An and a constraints of the second se	Primary Information           Bust Date         ()           23.Axes 2024         ()           ()         for Time         ()           18.23         ()         Max Albudo         ()           600 (Alb. Infort)         ()         ()         ()           900 (Alb. Infort)         ()         ()         ()	<ul> <li>⊙ Sava Time</li> <li>1530</li> <li>⊒ Dunition</li> <li>27us Simini</li> <li>☆ Done Hume</li> <li>text</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Evel Date</li> <li>25 Jule 2724</li> <li>40 Operation Type</li> <li>VLOB</li> <li>VLOB</li> <li>20 Date ID</li> <li>3346</li> </ul>
Bhargay Tank     bhargay@astrautm.     Account     Cr. Looper		And Target And Ta	Abo Dhabi  Costinin Al babbah  Albabah  Abbah  Abba	ABU DHABI	
li Account (⊖) Logout		Conceler		Lautomies	

Figure 5-4(b): Drone Flight Request Details

4. Click the yellow **View** button at the end of the row to view details of a particular flight request, as seen in Fig 5-4(b).

	ALTAR OF SHE ALAR LIAN GUIDORIN	Dashboard / Drone Flight Request / Comms		
Ha	Dashboard			
٢	Drone Flight Requests		Hi, you are now active with test at Latitude: 24.5840754, Longitude: 54.6508019.	
30	Drone Flight History		Today 1542:11	
đ	Operator Users		Admin 🕛	
×	Drones		Your drone flight request is now in progress.	
	Incident Reporting		Today 10:41:46	
			Admin 🔟	
			Your drone flight request is now in progress.	
			Today 16:59:16	
			Admin 🚺	
			Your drone flight request is now in progress.	
			icasy 10.597.89	
			Admin U	
			Your drone llight request is now in progress. Today 17:00:05	
۹	Bhargav Tank bhargav@astrautm.com		Q 9	
© A				
⊖u	bgout			

#### Figure 5-4(c): Drone Flight Request - Communication Module

5. Click the green **Comms button** at the end of the row in Figure 5-4(a) to view the communications log between the pilot, and organisation manager as well as any authority users (SA, Admin and Approver) for a particular flight request. This feature allows for both text and voice messages to be sent to the Pilot pre-flight and during flight.



VETERAL CALE WINTER WITTER	6	← Dashboard / Drone Flight Re	equest / Create Flight	t Request				
Dashboard				₫ 🗅	ø	0	Primary Information	
Drone Flight Requests						<u>s</u>	Start Date *	End Date *
Drone Flight History							25 Jun 2024	25 Jun 2024
Operator Users						HARTOUT	Start Time *	End Time *
Drones						57	15:30	18:23
Incident Reporting							Coordinates *	Max Altitude (Ft)
							24* 36' 54.76176' N 54* 37' 33.24288' E, 24* 34' 3.93564' N 54* 38' 25.1!	400
							Flight Information	
							Activity Purpose *	Operation Type *
			AI Weefer				Aerial Filming V	VLOS
			جزيرة الوحيل Ras Ghuza				Pilot Name*	Drone Name *
			المعامل جوره راس عراب	AL RAHDAH			bhargav tank 🗸	test
							Requesting Organisation *	Supporting pilots
			Alusto alusto			P Y CITY	Self	
Bhargay Tank		AL AL basis Berulu	ban ba ba				Camera In Use	Emirates *
bhargav@astrautm.com		And	Vas Island جزیرہ باس				Yes	Abu Dhabi
Account		Abu Dhabi					City *	
Logout		Hudaymat	0					

### 5.4.2 Creating Flight Requests

Figure 5-4(d): Drone Flight Request creation - I

	رمــــَمــارغــــرفا الــداعــا الـــرما المماديم (ميريم ميريم ميريم ميريم ميريم ميريم	>	Dashboard / Drone Flight R	Request / Create Flight Request			
ΗŢ	Dashboard			🗘 🚳 💠 💼 🛱	ø	Location *	
9	Drone Flight Requests					I acknowledge that I will be flying only during day time.	
e)tc	Drone Flight History					-	
õộ	Operator Users				CHARTOUT .	I acknowledge that I will use only one drone during the entire operation	
ж	Drones				CHADEER ALVAN Jahr Jah	Other Information	
	Incident Reporting				3  M/	Documents	
					H ALBRETH	Commission Letter From Client  File Type: pdf	
						Company Owner Enlantes Ropol View	
					RIZAD	Supporting Document File Type: jpeg.jpg.pdf	
				Aland Ratefinard	MUNAVIN	LATITUDE	LONGITUDE
			NOURANGLA	د العام من عرب العام العام العام العام الع العام العام الع		24° 36' 54.76192' N	54° 37 33.24281' E
				Charlen AL Control of the second	ZATED MILITARY CITY	24* 34' 3.93556' N	54* 38' 25.15321' E
	Bhargav Tank		لار له العسل لافتران القرار الماري القرار الماري	Adam Al Canadication not Salar Yas Island	AND TANK	24° 34' 35.40844' N	54° 41' 45.37904' E
	count		Abu Dhabi				
⊖ u	ogout		Hudsynster Hudsynster	ALBAN CONT		VALIDATE CANCEL	

Figure 5-4(d): Drone Flight Request creation - II

- 1. Click **Drone Flight Requests -> Add New** from the drop down sub menu to create a new flight request in the system.
- 2. Create a flight plan using the circle or polygon feature on the map interface, clicking and dragging the area selected to desired location where operation is to be conducted. When defining an area of operation using a circle, recreational



pilots are limited to a maximum radius of 500m and altitude of 400 ft, and a similar corresponding area when using a polygon.

3. Complete the required information fields as mentioned below:

a. Start/End Date	g. Pilot Name
b. Start/End Time	h. Drone Name( Can select up to 5)
c. Coordinates	I. Requesting Organisation
d. Max Altitude	j. Supporting Pilots
e. Activity Purpose	k.Camera in Use
f. Operation Type	l. Emirates/City/Location

Note: Start date and End date of flight request must be the same for Recreational pilots as they are restricted to same day flights and only in the daytime.)

- 4. Acknowledge the statements for the operation of the drone and upload required documents: Commission Letter from Client, Risk Assessment( for commercial flight requests where drones weigh more than 25kg)and Supporting Document.
- 5. Click **Validate** once information fields have been completed. The system validates the information provided by the user. In case any information captured is incorrect, the system provides the users with the non-validation reason. The application will only proceed once all the captured information passes the system validation
- 1. Click the **Submit button** to submit the flight request for authorisation.

### 5.4.3 Shielded Operations - Flight Request

Shielded operations within the UTM refer to specialised drone activities conducted by government or authorised entities. These operations are exempt from routine monitoring, and only designated users can grant flight authorisations and oversee such flights.

Operators with the access to create the Shielded Operations will be allowed to create flight requests in the system for such flights.



Figure 5-4(e): Drone Flight Request creation - Shielded Operation

While creating the flight requests, the users will be provided with the option to select Shielded Operations:

### 1. Click on Shielded Operations -> Yes option

This flight request will be subject to the shielded operations workflow.



### 5.5 Drone Flight History

Drone Flight History allows users to view details of a live flight in progress as well as details of a flight after it has been completed.

5- GĐ	المرآ ـ العام فالطبران المرا ERAL CIVIL AVIATION AUTHORITY	\$ ← Dashboard / D	Drone Flight History	1					
	Dashboard	O. Search						EXPORT	REFRESH
ц. Щ.	Drone Flight Requests Drone Flight History	D	RESERVATION	PILOT NAME	PILOT NUMBER	REQUEST DATE	FLIGHT START	FLIGHT END	
දී ඉප	Operator Users	11112	N/A	Sabeena Ahmed	+971544143023	24 Jun 2024	24 Jun 2024 17:31:41	24 Jun 2024 17:34:07	<u>ଚ</u> କ ୭
~ *	Incident Reporting	11111		Sabeena Ahmed	-971544143023	24 Jun 2024	24 Jun 2024 12:30:13	24 Jun 2024 17:29:00	<u>o</u>
		11110	N/A	Sabeena Ahmed	+971544143023	24 Jun 2024	24 Jun 2024 12:09:24	24 Jun 2024 12:09:37	<u>o</u> 🕁 🔊
	Sabeena Ahmed sabeena@astrautm.com								
() ()	Account EN	1 - 3 of 3							

Figure 5-5(a): Drone Flight History List

- 1. Click on **Drone Flight History** to view the list of both live and completed flights.
- 2. Following details can be seen:
  - a. Flight ID d. Pilot Number
  - b. Reservation e. Request Date
  - c. Pilot Name f. Flight Start/End
- 3. Click on a **colour coded option at the end of row** to obtain Flight History data which includes: Flight data, Post Flight Report and Flight Replay.

#### Flight Data:

	← Dashboar	d /Drone Flight Histo	ry / Flight Da	ita								
Dashboard ⓒ Drone Flight Requests ~	■ Drone Fligh     11112	t ID # Drone DS56	e Serial Number 789	Crone Name Rapid007	8 Pilot Name Sabeena A	) 🖶 Fli Jhmed 24	ght Date . June 2024 17:31:41					
	O, Search											
🔀 Drones 🗸	ID	READ TIME	LATITUDE	LONGITUDE	ALTITUDE (	SPEED (M/S)	FIX QUALITY	SATELLITES	рітсн	ROLL	HEADING	TOTAL FLIG
Incident Reporting V	1813099	24 Jun 2024 17:29:02	25° 6' 36.96984'' N	55" 8' 38.83740" E								
	1813102	24 Jun 2024 17:29:02	25° 6' 36.96984'' N	55° 8' 38.83740" E	12							
	1813100	24 Jun 2024 17:29:02	25° 6' 36.96984'' N	55° 8' 38.83740" E								
	1813101	24 Jun 2024 17:31:40	25° 6' 36.96984'' N	55° 8' 38.83740" E	12							
	1813098	24 Jun 2024 17:31:40	25° 6' 36.96984'' N	55* 8' 38.83740" E								
	1813097	24 Jun 2024 17:31:40	25° 6' 36.96984" N	55° 8' 38.83740" E								
	1813105	24 Jun 2024 17:31:42	25° 6' 36.96984'' N	55* 8' 38.83740" E	12							
Sabeena Ahmed sabeena@astrautm.com	1813104	24 Jun 2024 17:31:42	25° 6' 36.96984'' N	55° 8' 38.83740'' E								
<ul> <li>(§) Account</li> <li>► Logout</li> </ul>	1813103	24 Jun 2024 17:31:42	25° 6' 36.96984'' N	55* 8' 38.83740" E	12							

Figure 5-5(b): Drone Flight History - Flight Telemetry Data

1. Click the **Yellow View button** to view **Flight Data** as seen in Fig 5-5(a). The following flight parameters such as latitude, longitude, altitude, speed, pitch and roll etc are recorded.

#### Post Flight Report:





Figure 5-5(c): Drone Flight History -Post Flight Report

 Click the Green Download button (see Fig 5-5(a)) to download the Post Flight Report.

Flight Replay:



Figure 5-5(d): Drone Flight History - Flight Replay

1. Click the **Red Replay button -> Flight Replay** as seen in Fig 5-5(d).

Flight details such as altitude, speed and distance of the drone flight can be viewed as a graphical representation on the right along with the METAR weather data and any communication that took place between the Administrator and Pilot at the time of the flight.

- 2. Users have the option to zoom in and out of the map as well.
- 3. Click the **Play button -> Flight Replay** to replay flight at different playback speeds (1x, 2x, 4x).

**Note:** The Shielded drone operations will be visible in the similar manner but only to the authorised users with the access privilege.

### 5.6 Operator Users

This feature allows Organisation Managers users to view and manage the Operator users (Organisation Managers & Pilots) registered within the organisation, and to also create/register a new Operator User when required.

**Note:** The Organisation Manager will only be able to view operators registered under its Organisation and the Pilot will be restricted to viewing only their own user profile.

المولية المالية	← Dashboard / Operat	or Users / Operator U	ser List					
Deabboard         O           Drone Flight Requests         ~           **         Drone Flight History	Q search	ORGANISATION	NAME	EMAIL	CATEGORY	PROFILE TYPE	CREATED ON	EXPORT REFRESH
→ ∰ Drones →	30707	Pavilion	bhargav tank	gabeen90@yopmail.com	Commercial	Manager	29 May 2024	ବ ଥ
a Incident Reporting V	30702	Pavilion	Pilot John	testtest01@yopmail.com	Commercial	Pilot	29 May 2024	@ &
	30683	Pavilion	bhargav tank	p3.pavilion@yopmail.com	Commercial	Manager	22 May 2024	@ 2
	30682	Pavilion	Pilot John	p2.pavilion@yopmail.com	Commercial	Pilot	22 May 2024	@ C
	30679	Pavilion	bhargav tank	p1.pavilion@yopmail.com	Commercial	Manager	22 May 2024	@ &
● bhargav tank bhargav@astrautrn.com								
lo Account								
Copyright © 2022 AsstaUTM, All Rights Reserved.	<b>1 - 5</b> of 5							«   <   1   >   »

### To View Operator User List :

Figure 5-6(a): Operator User List

- 1. Click Operator Users -> List All from the menu and sub menu options to view all the Operator Users registered in the system.
- 2. The information displayed is as below:
  - a. Operator ID
  - b. Organisation
  - c. Name
  - d. Email
- 3. Click the **Export** button in the top right hand corner of the page to export Operator User data if required.

- - e. Category
  - f. Profile Type
  - g. Created On

_						
	ya-ja-afi oj-johi e-al-e-fi e-ta-bi General Civil Alation Authority	>	Disatiboard / Operator Users / Operator User View			
塓	Dashboard		USER DETAILS DRONE VIEW	RECENT FLIGHT REQUESTS ORGANISATION		
٢	Drone Flight Requests					
)(	Drone Flight History					
0g	Operator Users					
×	Drones					
	Incident Reporting		& First Name	& Last Name	Mobile Number	
			Exterger	Lat W.	49/100/003122	
			Email Address	Ountry of Residence	Nationality	
			bhargav@astrautm.com	United Arab Emirates	Aland Islands	
			Passport Number	Passport Expiry Date		
			ik7766666	21 June 2029	784-1997-5555555-5	
			Emirates ID Expiry Date	= State	#11 Operator/Company	
			21 June 2029	Abu Dhabi	bhargav games	
			Topic/Purpose	≡ City	Operator Name (Arabic)	
			Commercial	ABU DHABI	bhargav	
			Phone Number	Operator Family Name (Arabic)	Alias (Arabic)	
				tank	tank ar	
				E Place Of Birth	Passport Issue Place	
			21 June 1996	Aland Islands	Aland Islands	
			≡ Gender	Passport Issue Date		
	Bhargev Tank		Male	21 June 2024		
	and going and an instant		Documents			DOWNI CAD ALL
÷	Account		Bookinging			Donne on the
⊖ L	Logout		100 Emirates Daper Download	di Download 🙀 UKE Visa.pdi Download 📮 Drose Operator Photograph.jpg View		

### To View Details of Operator User :

Figure 5-6(b): Operator User (View)

- 1. Click the yellow **View** button at the end of the row to view details of the following:
  - a. User Details
  - b. Drones listed under Operator
  - c. Recent Flight Requests
  - d. Organisation

#### To Edit Operator User Details :

yab.ali oʻyjini kel.k.if kt.j.ali Benerod Cyne andycov Authorety	Dashbourd / Operator Users / Manage Operator User			
Dashboard		First Name *	Last Name *	
Drone Flight Requests		bhargav	tank	
🚖 Drone Flight History		Mobile Number *	Email Address •	
Cl Operator Users		⊨ · +971 55 766 3122	bhargav@astrautm.com	
H Drones		Country of Residence	Nationality*	
incident Reporting		United Arab Emirates 🗸 🗸	Aland Islands V	
		Passport Number *	Passport Expiry Date	
		lk7766666	21 Jun 2029	
		Emirates ID Number*	Emirates ID Expiry Date *	
		784-1997-5555555-5	21 Jun 2029	
		State *	Organisation *	
		Abu Dhabi 🗸	bhargav games 🗸 🗸	
		Topic/Purpose *	City *	
		Commercial ~	ABU DHABI	
		Operator Name (Arabic) *	Phone Number	
		bhargav	<b>m</b> · +971	
Bhargav Tank bhargav@astrautm.com		Operator Family Name (Arabic) *	Alias (Arabic)	
Account		tank	tank ar	
C> Logout		Date of Birth	Place Of Birth *	



_								
	VILIDARI (MULTINI ALTHONY)		Deshboard / Operator Users / Manage Operator User					
瑕	Dashboard			bhargav	-	+971		
۲	Drone Flight Requests			Operator Family Name (Arabic) *	Alias	Arabic) *		
14	Drone Flight History			tank	tan			
a	Onsester Linnes			Date of Birth	Place	Of Birth *		
ۍ ۹	Donnes			21 Jun 1996	Ak	nd Islands		
0				Passport Issue Place *	Gend	r. <b>*</b>		
	Incident Reporting			Aland Islands V	Ma	ie .		
				Passport Issue Date *				
				21 Jun 2024				
				Emirates ID *     File Type: pdf		Passport <b>●</b> * File Type: pdf		
				Desizates ID View		- tessport	View	
				Pilot Training Certificate  File Type: pdf		UAE Visa * File Type: pdf		
						AE Vise	View	
				Drone Operator Photograph * File Type: jpeg.jpg				
۹	Bhargav Tank bhargav@astrautm.com			Drone Operator Photograph View				
0		EN AR						
⊖ I	tuogou			SAVE				

Figure 5-6(c): Operator User (Edit)

- 1. Click the green **Edit** button at the end of the row to edit details of the Operator User such as name, mobile number, nationality and passport number. (Note: Email, Profile Selector and Organisation cannot be edited and stays permanently in the system. The only way to change this information is to create a new profile and organisation and assign users again.)
- 2. Click **Save** when changes are complete.

	يوستهما ولي المحاصة المحاصة المحاصرة المحاصرة والمحاصرة والمحاصة المحاصة المحاصة المحاصة المحاصة المحاصة المحاص	>	C Dashboard / Operator Users / Add Operator User		
	Dashboard			Topic/Purpose *	First Name [®]
٩	Drone Flight Requests				
$\mathcal{A}_{i}^{l_{0}}$	Drone Flight History			Last Name *	Mobile Number *
0ê	Operator Users				<b>pa</b> - +971
	Drones			Email Address *	Country of Residence *
	Incident Reporting				
				Nationality *	Passport Number *
				Passport Expiry Date *	State *
				Profile Selector*	City *
				Operator Name (Arabic)	Phone Number
					+971
				Operator Family Name (Arabic) *	Alias (Arabic) *
	Bhargav Tank				
	bhargav@astrautm.com			Date of Birth *	Place Of Birth *
	scount				
	gout			Passport Issue Place *	Gender *

#### To Add Operator User :





- 1. Click **Operator Users -> Add New** from the menu and sub menu options to create a new Operator user in the system.
- 2. Complete the required information fields and upload required documents as and click **Save.**
- 3. An email notifying the pilot of successful account creation will be automatically generated prompting the pilot to link the account with their UAE Pass as seen below in Fig 5-6(e). (see Section 5.1.2 for linking account to UAE PASS)



#### Figure 5-6(e): Successful Account Creation email - Commercial Pilot



### 5.7 Drones

This feature allows Pilots (recreational and commercial) and Organisation Managers to view all the Drones registered under their profile or within the organisation respectively. Users are also able to register a new drone and/or a fleet of drones.

#### To View Registered Drone List :

مراجعها والمراجعة المراجعة الم	← Dashboard / Dron	nes / Drone List								
Dashboard	O. Search		Total tr You will	ackers to purchase :1 need to purchase a trac	ker by getting in touch v	vith your sales manager	at Etisalat e&		EXPORT	REFRESH
· Drone Flight History	ID O	DRGANISATI NAMI	e MANUFACTU	MODEL	SERIAL NO.	TRACKER NA	CREATED BY	STATUS	SUPPORTED	
Cl Operator Users V	3342 C	Dz Industries Rapid	3007 Foxtech	Other - FX1234	D556789	N/A	Admin UTM	APPROVED		
ii Incident Reporting V										
Sabeena Ahmed sabeena@astrautm.com										
Account IN AR	1 - 1 of 1								□ «	1 > >>

Figure 5-7(a): Drone List

 Click on Drones -> List All from the drop down sub menu bar to view all the drones registered within the organisation. The following information is displayed:

a. ID	f. Serial No.
b. Organisation	g. Tracker name
c. Name of Drone	h. Created By
d.Manufacturer	i.Status
e.Model	



2. Click Export located in the top right corner to export Drone List information when required.

#### To View Details of Drone:

	ALTAR OF SHEAD AND AUTHORITY	>	← Dashboard / Drones / Drone View			
ER	Dashboard		DRONE INFORMATION	RECENT FLIGHTS PILOT ORGANISATION		
9	Drone Flight Requests					
)[o	Drone Flight History					APPROVED
0 ⁰	Operator Users		test			
ж	Drones		Dimonthe			
	Incident Reporting		Primary information			
			11 Manufacturer	- Crone Type	Model Name     Minic 3 Pro	
			m Commission Date	(#) Drone Serial Number	= Drone Weight(KG)	
			21 Jun 2024	4556443		
			Remarks			
			Documents			DOWNLOAD ALL
			🖬 Drase Inage jeg – View 🖾 0	house Serial Number Image jpeg View 🕞 🙀 Letter of Conformity from MOUXT pdf — Download		
۹	Bhargav Tank bhargav@astrautm.com					
© A						
⊖ L	ogout					

Figure 5-7(b): Drone Details

- Click on the action buttons at the end of each row on the List All page (Figure 5-7 (a)) to View and Edit Drone Details.
- 2. Click the **Yellow View button** to view details of the registered drone , recent flights conducted by the drone, pilot and organisation details.

### To Edit Drone Registration Details :

	W-D-AR ()- JAR & ALA RE LAR BENERAL CIVE MARTON AUTHORITY	>	Cashboard / Drones / Manage Drone			
	Dashboard			Manufacturer *	Drone Type *	
۲	Drone Flight Requests				Hybrid 🗸	
)(	Drone Flight History			Model Name *		
<u>9</u> 0	Operator Users			Mavic 3 Pro		
ж	Drones			Commission Date *	Drone Serial Number *	
	Incident Reporting			21 Jun 2024	4556443	
				Drone Weight (KG) *	Drone Name *	
					test	
				Drone Image ① * File Type: jeva. jea.pdf	Drone Serial Image • * File Type: jpes.jpes.gdf	
				Crose Image View	Drone Secial Number Image View	
				Letter of Conformity from MOIAT * File Type: jpg.pdf		
				Letter of Conformity from MOGAT View		
				UPDATE		
	Bhargav Tank bhargav@astrautm.com			ASSIGNED USER LIST		
٢	Account			Bhargav Tank		
€÷	Logout					

Figure 5-7(c): Edit Drone Registration Details

1. Click the **Green Edit button -> Drone Registration.** Edit details, and click Update.

#### To Add New Drone :

		← Dashboard / Drones / Manage Drone			
	Dashboard		Manufacturer *	Drone Type *	
	Drone Flight Requests				
	Drone Flight History		Model Name *		
	Operator Users				
*	Drones		Commission Data #	Drona Sarial Number	
	Incident Reporting				
			Drone weight (KG) *	Urone Name	
			Drone Image • * File Type: jpeg. jpg. pdf	Drone Serial Image 💿 * File Type: jpeg. jpg. pdf	
			Letter of Conformity from MOIAT *		
			SAVE CANCEL		
	Pharman Tarde				
٩	bhargav@astrautm.com				
	count				
	gout				

Figure 5-7(d): Create Drone

1. Click **Drones -> Add New** to register a new drone in the system.

# the respective registering pilots.

Note: Drones registered by the Organisation Manager are assigned to all pilots within

their organisation. Drones registered by individual pilots are exclusively assigned to

	A-IS-AT 05-JBI 4-0LA T 4-1JAT ERIERAL CIVIL AMATION AUTHORITY	Dashboard [/] Drones	/ Drone Groups							
	Dashboard	Q, Search						UPLOAD CSV	DOWNLOAD TEMPLATE	REFRESH
	3D Flight Map									
	Drone Flight Requests	ID	DRONE NAME	FILE NAME	SUCCESS	FAILED	TOTAL	STATUS	REMARKS	
	Drone Flight History			DroneBulkSample (2)638549150950619994.csv				PENDING		
9.E	Authority Profile Management									
	Operator Profile Management			DroneBulkSample (1)638448060745656111.csv				PENDING		
	Organisation Management	38		DroneBulkSample (1)638448060526698285.csv				PENDING		
	Authority Management									
	Operator Users			DroneBulkSample63841602				FAILED	Error Reading CSV File	
12	Authority Users	36	Bulk Drone 1	Light Show Fleet638409807359344723.				SUCCESS	Done	
) (C	Drones			Light Show						
¢	Broadcast	33		Fleet638409806884887691.				SUCCESS	Done	
	Incident Reporting		DRNSHW001	Drone Group 1638409778722940343.csv				SUCCESS	Done	
	Approver Zones			DroneBulkSample (1)638409018836074871.csv				success	Done	
	Aeronautical Information Management									
	Field Customisation	1 - 8 of 10								
	Business Modules	1.00110								

#### To View Drone Groups:

- d. Commission Date

- e. Drone Serial Number
- f. Drone Name
- g. Drone Weight*
- h. Upload documents**

(*The maximum weight allowed when registering a drone for recreational operations is 5kg. Drone weight for commercial operations is unlimited, however, a Risk Assessment must be uploaded when registering a drone that weighs more than 25kg). **Documents include - Drone Image, Drone Serial No. Letter of Conformity from MOIAT, Risk Assessment for drones weighing more than 25kg - this is for commercial operations only).

2. Complete the required information fields on the Drone Registration page as listed below, along with uploading regu documents, and click **Save**.

- a. Manufacturer
- b. Drone Type
- c. Model Name

Figure 5-7(e): Drone Groups/Fleets



- To view drones that are part of a fleet of drones, select Drone Groups from the sub menu options and navigate to the drone group in question and click the yellow View button to view drones in that group.
- 2. The Organisation Manager can add a fleet of drones by downloading template and entering required drone information. This is then uploaded as a CSV file.

# 5.8 Incident Reporting

This feature allows the user to view details of Incident Reports submitted by pilots during an event.

	يم الحمال وإلى الألم معالم الله المحمول	Dashboard / Incident Report / I	cident Report List					
H ^{all}	Dashboard							REFRESH
9	Drone Flight Requests							
ŝ	Drone Flight History	INCIDENT REFERENCE NO.	INCIDENT NAME	ROOT CAUSE	REPORTED DATE AND TIME	FLIGHT ID	STATUS	
σê	Operator Users	• 150	Bird Attack	Other	25 Jun 2024 16:25:25	N/A	OPEN	
ж	Drones							
	Incident Reporting	• 149	Loss of Connection	Technical matrunction	25 Jun 2024 16:24:23	N/A	OVEN	
	List All							
	Add New							
٩	Bhargav Tank bhargav@estrautm.com							
@ A	ccount							
⊖+ L	egout	1 - 2 of 2						

Figure 5-8(a): Incident Report List

- 1. Click on **Incident Report** from the menu to view a list of all Incident Reports and their status, being either Open, Under Review or closed.
- 2. Other details of the Incident Report that the User is able to view are as follows:
  - a. Incident Reference no. e. Flight ID
  - b. Incident Name f. Status
  - c. Root Cause
  - d. Reported Date and Time



3. Click on the **Incident Details** button at the end of the row to view details of a particular incident report. See Fig 5-8(b) below.

	V-J-LAI d'J-hII &-d-R.I &-LyRI GENERAL CIVL ANNYON AUTHORITY		Deshboerd / Incident Report / Incident Detail	ls			
@ 13	Dashboard Drone Flight Requests		Incident Reference No. 150 Incident Description	Incident Name Bird Attack	Root Cause Other	Reported Date and Time 25 Jun 2024 16:25:25	Status OPEN
3€ ≩o 3()	Drone Flight History Operator Users Drones		The drone was attacked by the bird while flying in the air and of Supporting Documents	Vara			
	Incident Reporting List All Add New		Comments				
	Bhargav Tank				0 4		
ن ھ ب	bharganjjestrautm.com Account	DN AR					

Figure 5-8(b): Incident Details

- 4. Organisation Managers can review the details of the incident as well as any reports/documents/comments submitted by the reviewing authorities.
- 5. The option for the Organisation Manager to provide further comments and documents is provided towards the bottom of the screen.



### Reporting an Incident:

	VILISARI dijili kadari kali kali BENENCE OVERNI KUMEN ALI HONIT	Countround / Incident Report	
眼 ③ 帧	Dashboard Drone Flight Requests Drone Flight History	Report an incident           Incident Nume *           Incident Nume *	
• *	Operator Users Drones Incident Reporting	Incident Description *	
	List All Add New	Supporting Documents Upload File *    Degreed day from to Rever File Type, JPCG. PHO L PCF	
• •	Bhargav Tank bhargav@isstrautm.com Account Logout		

Figure 5-8(c): Reporting an Incident

- 1. Click **Add New** to report an Incident.
- 2. Create a Name for the Incident and provide the root cause and a description of the Incident along with uploading any supporting documents.
- 3. Click **Submit Report** when done.



### 5.9 Account

This feature allows the Organisation Manager to view, edit and update details of the following:

- a. User Profile
- b. Drones registered under the organisation
- c. Recent Flight Requests and
- d. Organisation

າດາ		← Account				
Dashboar	1 ht Requests ~	PROFILE	DRONES RECENT FLIGHT REQUES	TS ORGANISATION		
- Drone Flip	ht History			First Name *	Last Name 1	
Cli Operator	lsers v			bhargav Mobile Number *	tank Email Address ¹	
List All	eporting ^			+971 55 766 3122 Country of Residence	bhargev@estrautm.com Nationality *	
Add New				United Arab Emirates V	Aland Islands v	
				Ik7766666	21 Jun 2029	
				784-1997-55555555	21 Jun 2029	
				State °	Organisation * bharger games	
				Topic/Purpose * Commercial ~	City* ABUDHABI ~	
Bhargav Tan bhargav@es	sutracom			Operator Name (Arabic) *	Phone Number	
E⇒ Logout	EN AR			Operator Family Name (Arabic)	Alias (Arabic)	

Figure 5-9(a): Account Details Page

- Click on Account located towards the bottom of the menu options on the left side of screen.
- Click the desired tab to View/Edit details of account's profile, drones, organisation, and to view recent flight requests or to reset password.
   (See Figure 5-9 b,c,d,e, f, below).

Note: For Profile: Email and user name field are non editable.

3. Click **Save** to update changes.

#### **Profile:**

ULIZAR DIN AVERAL BALAN	← Account		
Dashboard			
Drone Flight Requests			
· ^ Drone Flight History			
OI Operator Users ∨		Passport Issue Place *	Gender "
β£ Drones ∨			
iii Incident Reporting V		Passnort Issue Date #	
	Confirmation	×	
	Please note that updating identific for authority approval and will prev	ation information, such as Emirates ID or passport, and its expiry date will send your profile ent you from submitting a flight request. Are you sure you want to continue?	
	CONFIRM	ANCEL	
Bhargav Tank			
bhargav@astrautm.com		EDIT	
Account IN AR			
⊡> Logout		DOWINEOAD CERTIFICATE	
yuuruli oju jeli kurtuuli kutyali aususuk cini, auviran ausucini	← Account		
งหมางสำปุญ-ฟิชี ไม่ประส์ ไม่ประส์ อธรรมน เว็บไป อบหรือสามารถไฟไฟ	← Account		
na sa	C Account	75 ORGANISATION	
With and the set of a	C Account	73 ORDANEATION	
With and the set of a metric material state of the set of a metric material state of the set of a metric material state of the set of the	C Account	75 ORGANISATION First Name *	Last Name 1
With and Bright Add and Add A	Account	TS ORGANISATION First Name *	Los Nune '
Unitable diameter for entroper	Account	TS ORGANEATTON First Name * burger Mobile Number *	Lat Name * tek Gmai Adress *
With Add State         Second Stat	Account	First Name *  First Name *  Mobile Number *  Mobile Number *	Lat Name * tek Email Address * Meganglastinutin.com
Under Spin and Laboration and Constrained and	Account	Fis ORGANEATTON  First Name *  Mobile Number *  Mobile Number *  Mobile Number *  Country of Residence *	Last Name * teck Email Address * biesgan@astradm.com Nationality *
Unitable Den en de la statue de la secono se unitable Den en en de la secono se unitable de la s	C Account	rs oncoversation First Name * Mobile Number * Mobile Number * Image: #271 5576 51722 Country of Residence * United Anals Eminens v	Lati Nune * sek Emai Adreas * Meger@astreatm.com Nationally * Alert silunds
Unitad Symphonic Network Annual Symphonic Network Symphonic Networ	C Account	Fis DRAVESATION  First Name *  Mobile Number *  Mobile Number *  Mobile Stands of State Finances  Mobile Add Finances  Passport Number *  Passport Number *	Last Name * sok final Address * Meganglastikatin com Katonally * Alinat Islanta v Pesspot Epply bate
Image: Section of the sector of the secto	C Account	Fiss DRAVESATION  First Name *  Mobile Number *  Mobile Number *  Mobile Number *  Mobile Number *  Passport	Last Name * sok Smil Address * bingenglamsam.com Nationally * Admit Islands Passport Exply fulge * 21 Jan 2029
Image: Section of the eleven control of the eleven contro	C ACCOUNT	FS ORDAVESATION  First Name *  Minager  Mobile Number *  e  of 155 7/6 3122  Country of Residence *  Uibers Aud Eminate	Last Name * sek Email Address * Email Address * Email Address * Email Address * Andre since * Restoration /* Presport Exply Date * En Jan 2029 En Jan 202 En Jan 2
Image: Destroad       Image: Destroad	Account	FS ORDAVESATION  First Name *  Mikeyse Mobile Number *  Ubited Aud Environe  Support Number *  Environe Environe  Support Number *  Environe	Last Name * sek  Ental Address *  talegradpantnum.com  Nationality *  Aland talinats v  Passpot Epoly Date *  11 Jan 2029 Entrate DE Epoly Date *  21 Jan 2029
Image: Instantial Instantiae Instantiae Instantiae Instantiae Instantiae Instan	Account	rs oRDANBANTON  First Hame *  burger  Mobile Number *  eff 155 716 3122  Country of Residence *  United Anal Eminates  Passport Number *  R776666.  Eminates D Number *  74 1972 455556  Counts *	Last Name *  sok  Gmil Address*  dwganglanisan com  Katonally *  Aind talada  Pasaport Exply Date*  21 Am 2029  Emilater 1D Dpily Date *  21 Am 2029
Image: Sector de Marcel Anticipativit       Image: Sector de Marcel Anticipativit         Image: Sector de Marcel Anticipativit       Image: Sector de Marcel Anticipativit         Image: Sector de Marcel Anticipativit       Image: Sector de Marcel Anticipativit         Image: Sector de Marcel Anticipativit       Image: Sector de Marcel Anticipativit         Image: Sector de Marcel Anticipativit       Image: Sector de Marcel Anticipativit         Image: Sector de Marcel Anticipativit       Image: Sector de Marcel Anticipativit         Image: Sector de Marcel Anticipativit       Image: Sector de Marcel Anticipativit         Image: Sector de Marcel Anticipativit       Image: Sector de Marcel Anticipativit         Image: Sector de Marcel Anticipativit       Image: Sector de Marcel Anticipativit         Image: Sector de Marcel Anticipativit       Image: Sector de Marcel Anticipativit         Image: Sector de Marcel Anticipativit       Image: Sector de Marcel Anticipativit         Image: Sector de Marcel Anticipativit       Image: Sector de Marcel Anticipativit         Image: Sector de Marcel Anticipativit       Image: Sector de Marcel Anticipativit         Image: Sector de Marcel Anticipativit       Image: Sector de Marcel Anticipativit         Image: Sector de Marcel Anticipativit       Image: Sector de Marcel Anticipativit         Image: Sector de Marcel Anticipativit       Image: Sector de Marcel Anticipativit         Image: Sector d	Account	FS DRUMARATION  First Name *  burger  Mobile Number *  w  extra finances  passort Number *  Passort Number *  Passort Number *  Trateade  Emitates ID Number *  Trateade  Trateade  Trateade	Last Name * sok Small Address * Margangkannam.com Nationality * Annet taloata Prasport Exply Date * 21 Jun 2029 Emirates ID Exply Date * 21 Jun 2029 Cogenization *
Image: Sector de Marcel d	Account	TS DREAMBRATION  First Name *  Mobile Number *  Mobile Number *  Passboot Number *  Passboot Number *  Passboot Number *  S756666  Emissies ID Number *  Ts411977-555555-5  State *  Number *  Take 100-200	Lat Name *  sok  fmal Address *  fmal Address *  fmal Address *  fmagne@antimum.com  Rullocally *  Alind tilsats  fmaspot Exply Date *  21 Jus 2029  Emitate ID Exply Date *  21 Jus 202
Image: displayed and and and and and and and and and an	Account	TS ORGANESATION  First Name *  first State St	Luat Name *  swk Email Address *  bargen glasmad m.com Nationally *  Aland silands  Passpot Exply Date *  21 Jul 2029  Emisters ID Exply Date *  21 Jul 2029  Organisation *  bargen genest  City *
	Account	TS ORGANESATION  FIG Stame *  Description  Fig Stame *  Description  Fig Stame *  Description  Fig Stame *  F	Last Nume *  Serial Address *  Fraial Address *  Margongastmutan.com Nationality *  Aland blands   Pasaport Explay Date *  21 Jun 2029  Eminates ID Explay Date *  21 Jun 2029  Organisations *  Margongastmutan *  Organisations *  Margongastmutan *  Org *  City *  AutureMatta
Image: Section and sect	C Account	S         ORGANESATION           First Name*	Last Nume *  Innik Ennik Address *  MargungBanmudan com Nationnik *  Aadri kikunda   Pasaport Expiry Data *  21 Jan 2029  Ennikater ID Expiry Data *  21 Jan 2029  Coperisation *  Margung ganma   City *  Anti Instan   City *  City
Balanced          Image: Destroard          Image: Destro	C Account	S     ORGANISATION         First Name *         Mobile Number *         Mobile Number *         Country of Readence *         Mobile Number *         Passport Number *         Passport Number *         749-1997-55555-5         State *         Ato Deals         Taple/Purpose*         Commercial         Operator Name (valoc) *	Last Nume *  texk  Enail Address *  Enail Address *  Enail Address *  Address #  Address

Figure 5-9(b): Account Details Page - Profile Edit

Note: Any changes made to details such as the user's Emirates ID, Passport and its expiry date will send the user's profile back for Authority approval preventing the user from submitting flight requests until their profile has been approved.



الھي RITY	

	VLDLAR (J) - (All & LEL R & LI AR	← Account		
			Operator Family Name (Arabic) *	Alias (Arabic) *
瞑	Dashboard		terik	tank ar
۲	Drone Flight Requests		Date of Birth	Place Of Birth*
ojte	Drone Flight History		21 Jun 1996	Aland islands V
ĝū	Operator Users		Passport Issue Place *	Gender *
×	Drones		Aland Islands V	Male
	Incident Reporting		Passport Issue Date *	
			21 Jun 2024	
			Emirates ID * File Type: pdf	Passport      Passport     Fis Type pdf
			C Environment D View	Prospert View
			Pilot Training Certificate () File Type: pdf	UAE Visa * Fia Typer pdf
				😅 tule Voe
			Drone Operator Photograph * File Type: joog jog	
			Devec Operator Hotograph     View	
۹	Bhargav Tank bhargav@astrautm.com		UPDATE CANCEL	
(i) A				
⊖ L	ogout		DOWNLOAD CERTIFICATE	

Figure 5-9(c): Account Details Page - Profile Edit

#### Drones:

	A THE PARTY AND A THE PARTY	>	← Account						
EĘ G	Dashboard			PROFILE DRONES	RECENT FLIGHT REQUESTS ORG	ANISATION			
\$ \$	Drone Flight History								
	Operator Users								
÷	Drones			<b>a</b>		8		8	
	Incident Reporting			My Hybrider		Pavilion Drone #1 (Light)		Drone 2 (heavy)	
				# Serial Number SN99887766	88 Manufacturer Foxtech	EFFIEL Number	88 Manufacturer DJI	Interest and the second se	88 Manufacturer ILD
۹	Bhargav Tank bhargav@estrautm.com								
© A									
⊖⊔	ogout								



### **Drone Flight Requests:**



		_					
	UNLINE CIVE AVAILON AUTHORITY	← Account					
	**						
표	Dashboard		PROFILE DRONES	RECENT FLIGHT REQUESTS	ORGANISATION		
۲	Drone Flight Requests						
계속	Drone Flight History						
ōê	Operator Users		APPROVED			CANCELLED	
×	Drones		Reservation No. 5365	() 2 hrs	53 min	Reservation No. 5359	() 4 hrs 0 min
			. Describer	= 1 10-			est thereis
			Aerial Filming	L Austuc 400ft	30	Aerial Filming	59ft
			Operation Type			Operation Type VLOS	
			VIEW DETAILS			VIEW DETAILS	
	Incident Reporting						
	Bhargav Tank						
Ť	bhargav@astrautm.com						
0	Account						
- C→ - I	Logout						

Figure 5-9(e): Account Details Page - Flight Requests

### Organisation:

		← Account				
Dashboard			PROFILE DRONES PECENTELIGHT REQUESTS ORGANISATION			
Drone Flight Requests						
Drone Flight History						
Operator Users			Company Name *	company warre (Arabic) *		
Drones			u begar garra			
			Owner or Representative Name *	Owner or Representative Name (Arabic)		
			cnargev	onargav ar		
			Trade License No. "	Trade License Expiry *		
Incident Deporting			1234560	21 Jun 2026		
			Establishment Card No. *	UDA Expiry Date From GCAA 1		
			12345609	21 Jun 2026		
			Company Registered Emirate *			
			Abu Dhabi 🗸			
			Company Address •			
			south			
Bhargav Tank bhargav@astrautm.com						
ccount	EN AR		File Type: jpeg, jpg, pdf	File Type: jpeg.jpg.pdf		
ogout			🖬 Authorised Personal Europorting Discussest View	🗊 Establishment Gaud Vietw		
	Rankel de Jak Lack Ale Lack Version de Carlos de La construir de Carlos de C	Analoh Angel and Andre and Angel and Andre and Angel and Ang Angel and Angel	Baseboard   Baseboard   Drove Flydt Houses   Drove Same Same Same Same Same Same Same Sam	Concern Concern   Description Table Loone No.*   Description Table Loone No.*   Description Concern   Description<	Image: Second Secon	

Figure 5-9(f): Account Details Page - Organisation



### 5.10 Language

This feature provides multilingual support allowing the **Organisation Manager and Pilots** to change the language on the user interface.

- 1. Users can switch between the primary and secondary languages set by the Administrator in the customization panel. The language switch buttons are located on all the screens at the bottom of the left panel.
- 2. Click on **EN button** for the **English language** or the **AR button (Secondary)** for the **Arabic language** to switch between languages.



Figure 5-10(a): Account Details page in Primary Language - English





Figure 5-10(b): Account Details page in Secondary Language - Arabic



### 5.11 Account Log Out

This feature provides a secure way for all users to end their current session within the application. Clicking **Logout** from menu options on the left of the dashboard logs user securely out of UTM. To access the system again, the user can login with UAE PASS from the Welcome screen.



Figure 5-11: Account Logout



# 6.0 Feature Access

### 6.1 User Profile Access*

#	Features	ОМ	OM - Govt	Pilot
1	Dashboard	$\mathbf{Y}$	$\mathbf{Y}$	$\mathbf{\mathbf{\nabla}}$
2	Drone Flight Request	$\mathbf{Y}$	$\searrow$	$\checkmark$
3	Drone Flight History	$\mathbf{\nabla}$	$\searrow$	$\checkmark$
4	Operator User	$\mathbf{Y}$	$\mathbf{Y}$	
5	Drones	$\mathbf{Y}$	$\mathbf{Y}$	$\mathbf{\mathbf{Y}}$
6	Incident Reporting	$\mathbf{n}$	$\mathbf{Y}$	$\mathbf{Y}$
7	Account	$\mathbf{N}$		$\mathbf{\mathbf{n}}$
8	Language	$\mathbf{\mathbf{\nabla}}$	$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$
9	Shielded Operations**		$\checkmark$	$\checkmark$

***Note**: Access to system features and the privilege to add, edit, and view the data is determined by the user's assigned profile.

****This feature** is accessible to the Government Organisation Managers and Pilots with the access to the Shielded Operations.



# 7.0 Knowledge Base

# 7.1 FAQs

### 1. How can I install the UTM application?

Go to the App Store or Play Store depending upon the device that you use and search for UAE Drones and install the application.

### 2. How can I change my profile picture or edit my profile?

Open the UTM Mobile application and go to the Profile section. Click on **EDIT** to edit your profile or update your profile picture by clicking on the edit button next to the default image. Select and upload your desired picture.

# 3. How can I check the situational awareness of airspace before conducting my flight?

Open the application and click **Create Flight Request** and then tap on the desired location on the map and then click on the arrow button on the Situational Awareness section.

### 4. How can I change the preferred language?

Open the application and click on the hamburger button and then go to Settings and select the desired language.



### 7.2 Troubleshooting

1. What should I do if I'm not able to see the weather details?

Check if all the permissions are allowed for UTM application, if not then allow the location access for UTM application.

2. What should I do if I'm unable to edit my drone manufacturer or drone type?

While editing the drone details, the fields for manufacturer and drone type cannot be modified, therefore you will need to delete the existing drone and create a new drone in the UTM application.



# 8.0 Contact Information

Should further information or clarification be necessary, please do not hesitate to reach out to the following members of team:

#	Name	Designation	Email Address
1	Naveed Ahmed	Project Manager	naveed@astrautm.com
2	Muhammad Jamaal	Training Manager	jamaal@astrautm.com